
 
COMMISSIONERS COURT AGENDA 

Tuesday, January 21, 2025 

9:30 a.m. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Striving for Excellence 

 
COMMISSIONERS COURT 

Neal Franklin, County Judge  

Commissioner Christina Drewry, Precinct 1 

Commissioner John Moore, Precinct 2 

Commissioner J Scott Herod, Precinct 3 

Commissioner Ralph Caraway Sr, Precinct 4 



 
 

COUNTY OF SMITH 
COMMISSIONERS COURT 

200 E. Ferguson, Suite 100 

Tyler, Texas 75702 
 

Phone: (903) 590-4605 Fax: (903) 590-4615 
 

Pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, this notice is to advise that a regular 

meeting of the Smith County Commissioners Court will be held at 9:30 a.m. on Tuesday, 

January 21, 2025, in the Smith County Commissioners Courtroom on the 1st floor of the 

Smith County Courthouse Annex, 200 E. Ferguson, Tyler, Texas. 

 

Questions regarding this agenda should be directed to Commissioners Court Administrative 

Assistant at 903-590-4605. The agenda is available on the County's website 

(http://www.smith-county.com). 
 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

DECLARE A QUORUM PRESENT 

DECLARE LEGAL NOTICES POSTED AND COURT DULY CALLED 

INVOCATION 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Members of the public who have previously filled out a 

participation form have an opportunity to address the Commissioners Court on agenda items. 

The Court is unable to deliberate on non-agenda items. If you desire to request a matter on a 

future agenda, you may make the request to a member of Commissioners Court. Individual 

comments are limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes. If you wish to address the Court, 

obtain a public participation form at the Commissioners Court entryway and submit the 

completed form to a staff member before the meeting begins. Please be mindful of the 

Commissioners Court Rules of Procedure, Conduct and Decorum when making your 

comments and/or attending public meetings. 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.smith-county.com/


OPEN SESSION:  

 

PRESENTATIONS 

 

1. Receive the Distinguished Budget presentation award from the Government Finance 

Officers Association. 

 

2. Receive delinquent tax collection report and presentation from the Linebarger law firm. 

 

3. Receive presentation and update regarding the Smith County Courthouse and Parking 

Garage Construction project.  

 

COURT ORDERS 

 

COMMISSIONERS COURT  

 

4. Consider and take necessary action to adopt a resolution supporting the efforts of the Tyler 

Area Chamber of Commerce Veterans Committee to have the State of Texas name a portion 

of U.S. Highway 69 as Veterans Memorial Highway. 

 

5. Consider and take necessary action to approve a reconciliation change order and authorize 

the final payment and acceptance of the Parking Garage (Phase 1 of voter approved 

Courthouse Bond package) and authorize the county judge to sign all related documentation. 

 

6. Consider and take necessary action to reappoint representatives to the Andrews Center 

Board of Directors Position #8 for a two-year term ending October 31, 2026, and authorize 

the county judge to sign all related documentation. 

 

7. Consider and take necessary action to establish the Smith County Historical Commission 

and appoint commissioners pursuant to Chapter 318 of the Texas Government Code and 

authorize the county judge to sign all necessary documentation. 

 

8. Consider and take necessary action to approve a professional services consulting agreement 

with Petty & Associates, Inc. for economic development consulting for Smith County, and 

authorize the county judge to sign all necessary documentation.  

 

9. Consider and take necessary action to approve a Professional Services Agreement with 

FMD Architects, Inc. dba Shelter Partners of America for a Smith County Animal Shelter 

needs assessment study, with a maximum price not to exceed $16,000, and authorize the 

county judge to sign all necessary documentation. 

 

10. Receive the 2024 Racial Profiling Report and Exemption in accordance with Texas Code of 

Criminal Procedure, Chapter 2B for the following Smtih County Law Enforcement 

Agencies: 

 

a. Smtih County Constable Precinct 4, 

b. Smtih County Constable Precinct 5; and 

c. Smith County Criminal District Attorney’s Office.  

 

 

 



INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

 

11. Consider and take necessary action to approve an agreement between Smith County and 

CSC Holdings, LLC on behalf of Cequel Communications, LLC DBA Optimum/Optimum 

Business, and authorize the County Judge to sign all related documentation. 

 

COUNTY CLERK 

 

12. Consider and take necessary action to approve the (1) one-year renewal option with 

GOVOS, formerly Kofile for RFP-11-20 Land and Vital Records Management System and 

authorize the county judge to sign all related documentation. 

 

RECURRING BUSINESS 

 

COUNTY CLERK  

 

13. Accept Commissioners Court minutes for December 2024. 

 

14. Receive Commissioners Court recordings for December 2024. 

 

ROAD AND BRIDGE 

 

15. Consider and take necessary action to authorize the county judge to sign the: 

 

a. Final Plat for the Smith Addition, Precinct 1, 

b. Final Plat for the Webb Addition, Precinct 4, 

c. Final Plat for Gavins Ridge, Precinct 3, 

d. Final Plat for the V. Walker Addition, Precinct 4; and 

e. Re-Plat for the Oak Hills Addition, lots 17A, 17B and 17C, Precinct 3. 

 

16. Receive pipe and/or utility line installation request (notice only): 

 

a. County Road 24, CenterPoint Energy, install gas line, Precinct 3, 

b. County Road 2171, 1302, 2173, 2174, 2283, 2217, Frontier Communications, road bore 

to install aerial and underground fiber optic cable with pedestals and vaults, Precinct 2, 

c. County Road 2173, 2328, 2323, 2195, 2294, 129, 1293, Frontier Communications, road 

bore to install aerial and underground fiber optic cable with pedestals and vaults, Precinct 2, 

d. County Road 4135, Carroll Water Supply, install 4” of water line, Precinct 4; and 

e. County Road 383, Texas Land Company LLC, install water line, Precinct 3. 

 

AUDITOR'S OFFICE 

 

17. Accept monthly Auditor/Treasurer report and Executive Summary for December 2024. 

 

18. Consider and take necessary action to approve and/or ratify payment of accounts, bills, 

payroll, transfer of funds, amendments, and health claims. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: For purposes permitted by Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, entitled Open 

Meetings, Sections 55 l.071, 55 l.072, 551.073, 551.074, 551.0745, 551.075, and 551.076. The Commissioners 

Court reserves the right to exercise its discretion and may convene in executive session as authorized by the 

Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, et seq., on any of the items listed on its formal or briefing agendas.        



ADJOURN 

SMITH COUNTY COURTHOUSE ANNEX ACCESSIBILTY STATEMENT FOR 

DISABLED PERSONS This meeting site is accessible to disabled persons as follows: Entrance to the 

Courthouse Annex is accessible through the front entrance on the south side of the Courthouse Annex located at 200 

E. Ferguson. A wheelchair ramp provides access to the front entrance. The Commissioners Courtroom is on the first 

floor. If any special assistance or accommodations are needed in order to attend a Commissioners Court meeting, 

please contact Commissioners Court staff at 903-590-4605, in advance, so accommodations can be arranged. 

 

Date: 1/17/2025  Time: 3:00 p  
 

 

Posted By: Jennafer Bell  
 

NEAL FRANKLIN, COUNTY JUDGE 



1 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

Smith County has received the Distinguished Budget Award each year since the 
early 2000s.

01/13/2025 Casey Murphy

01/21/2024 Commissioners Court

Presentation: Budget Award

Receive the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award from the Government Finance 
Officers Association.

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT



January 09, 2025

Kari Perkins
Budget Officer
Smith County, Texas

Dear Kari:

A panel of independent reviewers have completed their examination of your Annual budget document for 
the period beginning October 2024. We are pleased to inform you that your budget document has been 
awarded the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award from Government Finance Officers Association 
(GFOA). This award is the highest form of recognition in governmental budgeting. Its attainment 
represents a significant achievement by your organization.

Your Distinguished Budget Presentation Award is valid for one year. To continue your participation in 
the program, it will be necessary to submit your next budget document to GFOA within 90 days of the 
proposed budget's submission to the legislature or within 90 days of the budget's final adoption.

Your electronic award package contains the following:

 Scores and Comments. Each entity submitting a budget to the program is provided with reviewers’ 
scores for each of the categories on which the budget document was judged along with reviewers’ 
confidential comments and suggestions for possible improvements to the budget document. We 
urge you to carefully consider these suggestions as you prepare your next budget.

 Budget Award. A camera-ready reproduction of the Award is included for inclusion in your next 
budget. If you reproduce the camera-ready image in your next budget, it should be accompanied by 
a statement indicating continued compliance with program criteria. Please refer to the instructions 
for reproducing your Award in your next budget (also included in your award package).

 Certificate of Recognition. When a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award is granted to an 
entity, a Certificate of Recognition for Budget Presentation is also presented to the individual(s) or 
department designated as being primarily responsible for its having achieved the award.

 Sample press release. Attaining this Award is a significant accomplishment. The sample press 
release may be used to give appropriate publicity to this notable achievement.

In addition, award recipients will receive via mail either a plaque (if the government is a first-time 
recipient or has received the Award fifteen times since it received its last plaque) or a brass medallion to 
affix to the plaque.

We appreciate your participation in this program, and we sincerely hope that your example will encourage 
others in their efforts to achieve and maintain excellence in governmental budgeting. The most current list 
of award recipients can be found on GFOA's website at www.gfoa.org. If we can be of further assistance, 
please contact the Awards Programs staff at (312) 977-9700.

Sincerely,

Michele Mark Levine
Director, Technical Services Center



PRESENTED TO

Smith County
Texas

For the Fiscal Year Beginning

October 01, 2024

Executive Director

GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION

Distinguished
Budget Presentation

Award



2 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

11/6/2024 Jennafer Bell

1/21/2025 Commissioners Court 

Presentation - Linebarger law firm

Receive delinquent tax collection report and presentation from the Linebarger law firm. 
 

See attached. 

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT





















3 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

01/17/2025 T. Wilson

01/21/2025 Commissioners Corut

Courthouse and Parking Garage Construction Presentation

Receive presentation and update regarding the Smith County Courthouse and 
Parking Garage Construction project.  

Fitzpatrick Architects and HOAR Construction will provide an update on the status of the 
construction of the voter approved parking garage, courthouse, old court demolition, and 
new plaza/square. This update will include a discussion of the design, costs, and proposed 
schedule.  

$179,000,000.00 voter approved bond (November 2022)

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT



4 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

01/10/2025 Casey Murphy

01/21/2024 Commissioners Court

Resolution of Support for Veterans Memorial Highway

Discuss and take necessary action to adopt a resolution supporting the efforts of the 
Tyler Area Chamber of Commerce Veterans Committee to have the State of Texas 
name a portion of U.S. Highway 69 as Veterans Memorial Highway.

The Tyler Area Chamber of Commerce Veterans Committee asked the Smith County 
Commissioners Court for a resolution of support to name a portion of U.S. Highway 69, from South 
Loop 323 in Tyler to the City of Bullard, as Veterans Memorial Highway. The initiative is also being 
supported by the East Texas Council of Governments and will be decided by the Texas Legislature.

Casey Murphy cmurphy@smith-county.com

Neal Franklin nfranklin@smith-county.com

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT



RESOLUTION 
 

At a regular meeting of the Smith County Commissioners Court held at the Smith County Courthouse Annex, 

Tyler, Texas, at which a quorum was present, the following Resolution was adopted:  

 

WHEREAS, the Smith County Commissioners Court recognizes the invaluable contributions of veterans 

who have served our nation with honor and sacrifice; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Smith County Commissioners Court fully supports the designation of a portion of U.S. 

Highway 69, extending from South Loop 323 in Tyler to the city limits of Bullard, Texas, as the Veterans 

Memorial Highway; and 

 

WHEREAS, this designation is being pursued by the Tyler Area Chamber of Commerce Veterans 

Committee with the support of CAMP V, the go-to resource center for veterans in Smith County, and the 

East Texas Council of Governments; and 

 

WHEREAS, East Texas is home to the second-largest concentration of veterans in the State of Texas, 

according to a study conducted in 2016 by Texas State University on behalf of the Texas Veterans 

Commission; and 

 

Whereas, the Tyler Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) is expected to receive the distinction of 

becoming the first Veteran-Friendly City Designation in the State of Texas by the East Texas Council of 

Goverments, further highlighting the region’s dedication to honoring veterans and their families. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Smith County Commissioners Court hereby 

expresses its full support for the establishment and state designation of the portion of U.S. Highway 69, 

from South Loop 323 in Tyler to the city limits of Bullard, Texas, as the Veterans Memorial Highway. 

 
 

WITNESS OUR HANDS THIS 21st day of January 2025 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Neal Franklin 

County Judge 

  

   

 

Christina Drewry 

Commissioner, Precinct 1 

 

 

John Moore 

Commissioner, Precinct 2 

   

 

  

J Scott Herod 

Commissioner, Precinct 3 

 

  

Ralph Caraway Sr. 

Commissioner, Precinct 4 

 



5 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

01/13/2025 Jaye Latch

01/21/2025 Commissioners Court

Final Payment and Acceptance of Parking Garage

Consider and take necessary action to approve a reconciliation change order and authorize the 
final payment and acceptance of the Parking Garage (Phase 1 of voter approved Courthouse 
Bond package) and authorize the County Judge to sign all related documentation. 

On October 17, 2024 Commissioners Court approve the Guaranteed Maximum Price of $14,057,271.00 
for the Parking Garage, which is Phase 1 of the new Courthouse Bond Project. The project came in 
$235,284.00 under budget and this item is requesting the court to approve a change order to reduce the 
contract amount by the amount of savings and authorize the final payment and acceptance of the parking 
garage.  The savings results in a final cost of the parking garage of $13,821,987.00.

Courthouse Bond Funds

jlatch@smith-county.com twilson@smith-county.com

✔

✔ ✔

SUBMIT



















6 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Submission Date: 
1/15/2025

 Submitted by: Jennafer Bell
Meeting Date: 1/21/2025 Department: Commissioners Court 

Item Requested is: ✔ For Action/Consideration For Discussion/Report 

Title: 
Board Appointments - Andrews Center Position #8 

Agenda Category:     Briefing Session Recurring Business 
Court Orders Resolution 

Presentation Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: Consider and take necessary action to reappoint representatives to the Andrews
Center Board of Directors Position #8 for a two-year term ending October 31, 2026, 
and authorize the county judge to sign all related documentation. 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes ✔ No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No ✔ 

Does Document Require Signature? Yes ✔ No

Return Signed Documents to the following: 

Name: Jennafer Bell Email: jbell2@smith-county.com

Name: Wendy Gutierrez Email: wgutierrez@andrewscenter.com

Name: Email: 

Name: Email: 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 

completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 

before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting. Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 

with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 

Tuesdays each week. 

SUBMIT 

Office Use Only 

Agenda Item #  

mailto:rmccord@smith-county.com
mailto:wgutierrez@andrewscenter.com
mailto:Agenda@smith-county.com


 

 
 

Branch Offices: Athens, Canton, Mineola & Emory  

2323 West Front Stret ∙ P.O. Box 4730 ∙ Tyler, TX, 75712 
(903)597-1351 ∙ 1-800-374-6058 

www.andrewscenter.com 

Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

October 14, 2024 

 

 

Judge Neal Franklin 

Commissioners Court of Smith County 

200 E. Ferguson, Suite 100 

Tyler, TX, 75702 

 

 

Dear Judge Franklin and Commissioners: 

 

As a sponsoring agency of Andrews Center, pursuant to Texas Health and Safety Code, Title 7, 

Subchapter A, please post the following action item on your next Commissioners’ Court agenda: 

 

“Consider adopting a RESOLUTION to re-appoint Board Member, John Shoemaker to the 

Andrews Center Board of Trustees, Position #8.” 

 

Lieutenant Shoemaker has provided dedicated service to the Center. He graciously agreed to 

serve for an additional two-year term pending the courts approval.  

 

The term of office for this re-appointment will be 10-31-2024 thru 10-31-2026.  It should be 

noted that our policy allows a trustee to continue serving until reappointment, until their 

successor is appointed, or until the trustee fails to meet the participation requirements.   

 

We would appreciate a copy of the signed Resolution. And thank you for your continued support 

of the Andrews Center and the citizens of Smith County. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Lynn Rutland, CEO 

 
 



7 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

1/16/2025 Rachel McCord

1/21/2025 Commissioners Court

Establish the Smith County Historical Commission and Appoint Commissioners

Consider and take necessary action to establish the Smith County Historical Commission 
and appoint commissioners pursuant to Chapter 318 of the Texas Government Code and 
authorize the County Judge to sign all necessary documentation.

Rachel McCord rmccord@smith-county.com

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT























8 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

01/17/2025 T. Wilson

01/21/2025 Commissioners Court

Professional Services Consulting - Economic Development

Consider and take necessary action to approve a professional services consulting agreement 
with Petty & Associates, Inc. for economic development consulting for Smith County, and 
authorize the County Judge to sign all necessary documentation.  

This agreement will allow Smith County to engage with Petty & Associates, Inc. for assistance with 
Economic Development programs within Smith County, outside of the traditional Tax Abatement  Structure. 
Petty & Associates, Inc. currently works with the City of Tyler, and Tyler Economic Development Council. 
Engaging this firm with help Smith County further mutual economic development goals among the partner 
entities, and to establish economic development programs specifically tailored to Smith County.

This is an as needed agreement, and rates are based on an hourly rate described below plus expenses. Statutorily the costs for this agreement 
shall not exceed and is not anticipated to exceed $50,000.  
 Staff                          Rate 
Principal (Mr. Petty)   $350 
Project Manager        $250 
Sr. Associate             $200  
Associate                   $150 
Support Staff              $100

✔

✔ ✔

SUBMIT



 
 
January 14, 2025 
 
Thomas Wilson 
Assistant District Attorney 
Civil Division   
100 N. Broadway Avenue, 4th Floor 
Tyler, Texas 75702 
 
Dear Mr. Wilson: 

You have asked Petty & Associates, Inc. (“P&A”) to provide an engagement letter to perform general 
economic development consulting for Smith County. Petty & Associates, Inc. has been in business since 
1997, supporting Texas cities and counties with economic development consulting and we are honored 
to be considered to support the efforts of Smith County.  

SCOPE OF SERVICE: 

Under the supervision of the Smith County Commissioner’s Court and/or their designee, P&A  will provide 
economic development consulting services on an hourly, as needed basis including but not limited to the 
following:   

1) Prepare analysis and compliance information necessary to successfully execute Texas Tax Code 
Ch 311 and Ch 312 Agreements on behalf of public sector clients.  

2) Provide cost benefit analysis for County incentive proposals. 
3) Prepare sources and uses data, capital stack analysis and operating pro-Formas in conjunction 

with economic opportunities identified by Smith County. 
4) Prepare Resolutions, Ordinances, and notices in compliance with State law and local policy. 
5) Negotiate incentive parameters between local taxing entities and developers.  
6) Prepare feasibility studies. 
7) Provide long range strategic planning for economic development entities and their affiliates. 
8) Prepare Routine or special correspondence as directed.  
9) Develop economic development impact analyses of proposed land use, site plans, plats and 

zoning requests as directed. 
 
2025 COMPENSATION RATES 
 
All services will be performed on an hourly basis according to the following rate schedule: 

 
   Staff                    Rate 

Principal (Mr. Petty)  $350 
Project Manager  $250 



       Sr. Associate                     $200  
Associate    $150 
Support Staff   $100 

TRAVEL and EXPENSES 
 
Actual travel expenses will be charged at the Compensation Rates depicted above.  Overnight stays, if 
necessary, will not incur accommodation expenses or meals. No additional expenses are contemplated 
for this engagement. 
 
TERMINATION 
 
P&A services may be terminated at any time with or without cause upon written notification to: 
 
Trent Petty, Founder and CEO 
Petty & Associates, Inc.  
9284 Huntington Square Suite 100 
North Richland Hills, TX 76182 
 
Only billable hours which are incurred prior to the notification of termination and agreed to by the client 
will be due and payable upon receipt of the invoice.  
 
If these terms are acceptable, please include the authorized signature from Smiith County Commissioner’s 
Court designee and return it at your convenience.  
 
We appreciate the opportunity to serve you. 
 
Approved by: 

____________________________________    

Neal Franklin, County Judge     Trent O. Petty, Founder and CEO  

Smith County, Texas                                             Petty & Associates, Inc. 

Date ________/_____                     Date     01/14/25  



9 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

01/17/2025 T. Wilson

01/21/2025 Commissioners Court

Shelter Partners of America - Animal Shelter needs assessment. 

Consider and take necessary action to approve a Professional Services Agreement with FMD Architects, Inc. 
dba Shelter Partners of America for a Smith County Animal Shelter needs assessment study, with a maximum 
price not to exceed $16,000, and authorize the County Judge to sign all necessary documentation 

This agreement will allow Smith County to engage in a professional services agreement with 
FMD Architects, Inc. (Shelter Partners of America). Development of the Needs Assessment 
Study is the first step to your future and evaluates the existing facility and operations, thus 
establishing a benchmark of current conditions and providing direction for the future. 

up to $16,000.00

✔

✔ ✔

SUBMIT



 

 

January 13, 2025 

Amber Greene 
Supervisor/ Department Head 
Smith County Animal Control and Shelter 
322 E. Ferguson 
Tyler, TX 75702 

Re: Proposal for Animal Shelter Consulting 

Dear Amber: 

Shelter Planners of America, hereinafter referred to as “SPA”, appreciates your interest in our services 
and is pleased to provide the following proposal for your consideration. 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 

1. Smith County Animal Control (SCAC), hereinafter referred to as the “Client”, is considering building a 
new animal shelter. The existing animal shelter is located at 322 E. Ferguson, Tyler, TX 75702. 

2. The current shelter is County operated and serves Smith County with a human population of 
approximately 243,000 for 2024 and receives approximately 1,200 -1500 animals per year. 

 
PROPOSED SERVICES 

STEP 1: NEEDS ASSESSMENT STUDY 
 

This Study is designed to provide you with the answers and facts you need when considering your future 
facility. Development of the Needs Assessment Study is the first step to your future and evaluates the 
existing facility and operations, thus establishing a benchmark of current conditions and providing 
direction for the future. 

Shelter Planners of America will travel to your location and spend a day and a half at your existing facility, 
reviewing your present facilities and operations and interviewing your staff and key decision makers. We 
will use our questionnaire that covers over one hundred items of statistics, information, and preferences 
to fully understand your organization. 

The Needs Assessment Study will be in a concise, easy to read format of approximately 30-40 pages, 
based on our 30 years of experience with hundreds of shelter facilities. This Study will cover the 
following: 

1. A review of the existing facilities stating attributes and deficiencies. The study will recommend 
modifications that should be considered if it was renovated and expanded or built new. 

 
2. The demographics of people and animal levels both current and projected, and a 

recommendation of animal housing capacity. 

3. Provide a Building Space Program with recommendations for the size building deemed necessary 
for administrative area, Animal Housing areas both indoors and outdoors, Medical Clinic area and 
Support areas. The Study will list each room and size needed in net SF and the total gross SF to 

Page 1 of 5 
1000 Texan Trail Suite 260, Grapevine, TX 76051 & 3200 W. Market St, Suite 205 Fairlawn, OH 44333 

Phone (817) 265-8522 www.shelterplannersofamerica.com 
FMD Architects, Inc. dba Shelter Planners of America 

http://www.shelterplannersofamerica.com/


1000 Texan Trail Suite 260, Grapevine, TX 76051 & 3200 W. Market St, Suite 205 Fairlawn, OH 44333 
Phone (817) 265-8522 www.shelterplannersofamerica.com 

FMD Architects, Inc. dba Shelter Planners of America 
Page 2 of 5 

 

 

include wall thickness and corridors. 

4. The Study will provide recommendations for a new site in terms of location in service area, 
visibility, access, suitability, parking, and site size. 

5. “Best practice” recommendations for equipment, materials, finishes, HVAC systems, plumbing 
and drainage systems in the new Shelter. 

6. A discussion of the Shelter staff size, current and future. 

7. A discussion of the Shelter operating budget, current and future. 

8. An Opinion of Probable Cost for construction of the new shelter based on our real-world 
experience with completed animal shelters. The estimate will include site work, soft costs and 
proposed contingencies. 

The Needs Assessment Study is the deliverable for Step 1 and will be provided electronically in pdf 
format. Once the Client has received and reviewed the Needs Assessment Study, we will review it with 
you virtually and make mutually agreeable revisions one time. 

STEP 2: CONCEPTUAL DESIGN 
 

Once authorized in writing, we will proceed with Step 2 - Conceptual Design. Our approach is to achieve 
a building that is enjoyable for the public to visit, pleasant to work in, easy to maintain, and healthy for the 
animals. 

Based on the approved Needs Assessment Study, an initial Preliminary Floor Plan for the Shelter will be 
developed. This will be a drawing showing the size and layout of the proposed building and all the room 
locations and drawn in Revit that is to scale, and showing layout details such as dog runs, cages, 
equipment, walls, windows, doors, floor slopes and drains, plumbing fixtures, cabinets, etc. A Basic Site 
Plan Concept will also be prepared showing the building, public parking, staff parking and drives. SPA will 
present the initial Floor Plan and Site Plan virtually. 

 
Following approval of the initial Floor Plan, including any adjustments, we will develop the Preliminary 
Floor Plan, in addition, we will prepare the final Preliminary Site Plan drawn in Revit for the selected site 
SPA will present the Preliminary Floor Plan and Site Plan virtually. In addition, an updated Opinion of 
Probable Cost for construction will be provided based on the final size of the project. The Site Plan and 
Floor Plan will be provided electronically in pdf format and are the deliverables for Step 2. 

 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES: 

 
1. Any services not identified above including additional meetings. 
2. Revisions to documents necessitated by a change in previous instructions or approvals. 
3. Preparing site plan layouts for any additional sites. 
4. Step 3 services - Complete architectural and engineering Construction Documents and Construction 

Phase services as outlined in our Statement of Qualifications. 
5. Detailed site design or civil engineering including drainage studies, platting, zoning changes and 

similar services. 
6. Coloring the Floor Plan, Site Plan, or preparation of 3D color renderings for fundraising purposes. 
7. Using our 3D Camera system to scan the existing building in order to obtain an accurate Floor Plan of 

the existing building if one is not provided and one is needed. 
 
 

PROVIDED BY CLIENT: 

http://www.shelterplannersofamerica.com/


1000 Texan Trail Suite 260, Grapevine, TX 76051 & 3200 W. Market St, Suite 205 Fairlawn, OH 44333 
Phone (817) 265-8522 www.shelterplannersofamerica.com 

FMD Architects, Inc. dba Shelter Planners of America 
Page 3 of 5 

 

 

1. Provide certain information regarding animal intake, human population, existing animal housing, 
existing staffing, operating cost, etc., prior to first meeting. 

2. Assemble the key staff and appropriate leaders with authority that have knowledge of the existing 
shelter operation to attend the Needs Assessment meeting, which will require approximately 6 to 8 
hours, to provide detailed information about the existing shelter, its operation and the desire for a 
shelter. We will send a letter prior to the day of the Needs Assessment meeting with a list of 
information needed prior to the meeting. 

 
3. Provide a quiet conference room with a projector and screen for the meeting. 

 
4. Site Plan and Floor Plan drawings of the existing shelter facilities. 

 
5. Survey of the proposed new site accurately showing the property lines, easements, and the size and 

location of existing site features including general topography. 

 
COMPENSATION 

 
1. The fees for the proposed services are: 

Step 1- Needs Assessment Study: Our fee will be a lump sum of Thirteen Thousand Dollars 
($13,000) plus travel reimbursement expense. Fifty percent (50%) of this fee will be invoiced once 
this agreement is signed. The balance of the fee will be invoiced when the Needs Assessment Study 
is provided to the Client. 

 
SPA will invoice the Client a flat amount of $3,000.00 for the trip for the Needs Assessment Study 
visit for two people, which will cover airfare, hotel, rent car, airport parking, mileage to airport, travel 
time and any other related travel expenses. 

 
Step 2- Conceptual Design: 

 
Option A: New Construction 
Our fee will be a lump sum of Twenty-Two Thousand Dollars ($22,000). Twenty-five percent (25%) 
of this fee will be invoiced at the start of Step 2, an additional 65% will be invoiced when the initial 
Floor Plan and Site Plan is provided, and the balance of this fee will be invoiced when the final Floor 
Plan and Site Plan is provided to the Client. 

2. If any additional deliverables beyond what is described in this agreement are requested and they 
involve physical printing or plotting, or courier services, or similar expenses these will be 
reimbursable expenses and will be invoiced to the Client at the same amounts as they are billed to 
SPA. 

 
3. Please note that if it is determined a shelter larger than 15,000 SF is needed or desired, the fee for 

the Conceptual Design will need to be increased at a rate of $1.00 per SF. 

4. Payment should be made within 30 days of receipt of the invoice. 
 

5. Hourly rates as of January 1, 2024, are indicated below, these rates are valid for the 2025 year and 
may be adjusted on an annual basis. If adjustments are made during this agreement period, the 
client shall be notified in writing: 

 
Principal 225 
Associate Principal / Director 185 
Project Architect 170 

http://www.shelterplannersofamerica.com/


1000 Texan Trail Suite 260, Grapevine, TX 76051 & 3200 W. Market St, Suite 205 Fairlawn, OH 44333 
Phone (817) 265-8522 www.shelterplannersofamerica.com 

FMD Architects, Inc. dba Shelter Planners of America 
Page 4 of 5 

 

 

Project Manager / Job Captain 150 
Senior Designer 150 
Modeling / Drafting 105 
Support Staff 95 
Admin 80 

 
PROPOSED SCHEDULE: 
The schedule would generally be as follows: 

STEP 1- Needs Assessment Study 
 

1. Notice to Proceed will be the receipt of the signed agreement: To be Determined 
2. SPA will immediately send a letter requesting certain information prior to the Needs Assessment 

meeting. 
3. Initial meeting for Needs Assessment and tour of existing Shelter: 2 Weeks after we receive the 

requested information. 
4. Provide draft version of Needs Assessment: 6 - 8 Weeks. 
5. Owner review and comment on draft version: 1 Week. 
6. Provide final Needs Assessment: 1 Week. 

STEP 2- Conceptual Design 
 

7. Notice to Proceed with Step 2 will be the receipt of written authorization. 
8. Meeting to present initial Conceptual Design of Floor Plan and Site Plan: 6 - 8 Weeks. 
9. Modify Conceptual Design of Floor Plan and Site Plan: 2 Weeks. 
10. Owner review and comment on Conceptual Design of Floor Plan and Site Plan: 1 Week. 
11. Provide final Conceptual Design of Floor Plan and Site Plan: 2 Weeks. 

 
Please note the exact schedule is subject to several variables. 

 
Please provide in the space below the name and contact information of the person(s) to whom we should 
email our invoices: 

Name:     
Title:     
Physical address:     
Email address:    
Phone No.   

http://www.shelterplannersofamerica.com/


1000 Texan Trail Suite 260, Grapevine, TX 76051 & 3200 W. Market St, Suite 205 Fairlawn, OH 44333 
Phone (817) 265-8522 www.shelterplannersofamerica.com 

FMD Architects, Inc. dba Shelter Planners of America 
Page 5 of 5 

 

 

Shelter Planners of America is pleased to provide this proposal for your consideration. Please contact 
me on my cell phone at (817) 881-1510 if you have any questions. If this proposal is acceptable, please 
sign below and return one copy to SPA. 

 

Sincerely, 
 

Michael Barnard, AIA, ACO 
Principal 
Shelter Planners of America 

 
 
 

L: P1846 SPA Proposal for Smith County TX 1-13-25 

 
Accepted by 

 
 

Signature 
 
 

Name and Title 
 
 

Date 

http://www.shelterplannersofamerica.com/


10 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Item Received By: ____________________________       Date: ___________________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by:

Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration  For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                       
 Presentation               

 Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:       Yes     No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary?  Yes     No 

Return Signed Documents to: 

Reviewed By: 
 County Auditor          Chief Technical Officer
 Purchasing Director  Other Relevant Reviewers(s):
 Legal Department  County Judge 

01/17/2025 T. Wilson

01/21/2025 Commissioners Court

Pct. 4, Pct 5, & DA's Office Racial Profiling Report

Receive the 2024 Racial Profiling Report and Exemption in accordance with Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, Chapter 2B for the following Smith  County Law 
Enforcement Agencies: 
  
a. Smith County Constable Precinct 4; 
b. Smith County Constable Precinct 5; and 
c. Smith County Criminal District Attorney’s Office.  

In accordance with Texas Code of Criminal Procedure Article, 2B.0053(7)(B) each law enforcement 
agency of a political subdivision must submit to the Texas  Commission on Law Enforcement and the 
Governing Body for that agency, a Racial Profiling Report or exemption. The Commissioners Court has 
the ministerial duty (without judgment or discretion) to receive the report or exemption from the law 
enforcement agency. 

N/A

SUBMIT

✔

✔ ✔



Racial Profiling Report | Full
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Agency Name:  SMITH CO. CONST. PCT. 4
Reporting Date:  01/13/2025
TCOLE Agency Number:  423104

Chief Administrator:  JOSHUA J. JOPLIN

Agency Contact Information:
Phone:  (903) 590-4871 
Email:  jjoplin@smith-county.com

Mailing Address:
14152 HWY 155 N
WINONA, TX  75792-0318

This Agency filed a full report

SMITH CO. CONST. PCT. 4 has adopted a detailed written policy on racial profiling. Our policy:

1)  clearly defines acts constituting racial profiling;

2) strictly prohibits peace officers employed by the SMITH CO. CONST. PCT. 4 from engaging in racial 
profiling;

3) implements a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the SMITH CO. CONST. PCT. 4 if 
the individual believes that a peace officer employed by the SMITH CO. CONST. PCT. 4 has engaged in racial 
profiling with respect to the individual;

4) provides public education relating to the agency's complaint process;

5) requires appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by the SMITH CO. 
CONST. PCT. 4 who, after an investigation, is shown to have engaged in racial profiling in violation of the 
SMITH CO. CONST. PCT. 4 policy;

6) requires collection of information relating to motor vehicle stops in which a warning or citation is issued and 
to arrests made as a result of those stops, including information relating to:

a. the race or ethnicity of the individual detained;
b. whether a search was conducted and, if so, whether the individual detained consented to the search;
c. whether the peace officer knew the race or ethnicity of the individual detained before detaining that 
individual;
d. whether the peace officer used physical force that resulted in bodily injury during the stop;
e. the location of the stop;
f. the reason for the stop.

7) requires the chief administrator of the agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected, employed, 
or appointed, to submit an annual report of the information collected under Subdivision (6) to:

a. the Commission on Law Enforcement; and
b. the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency, if the agency is an agency of a 
county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state.

The SMITH CO. CONST. PCT. 4 has satisfied the statutory data audit requirements as prescribed in Article 2.133(c), 

1  of  9



Code of Criminal Procedure during the reporting period.

Executed by:  JOSH JOPLIN
Constable

Date:  01/13/2025

2  of  9



Motor Vehicle Racial Profiling Information

Total stops:  609
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Street address or approximate location of the stop

City street 99

US highway 20

County road 173

State highway 317

Private property or other 0

Was race or ethnicity known prior to stop?

Yes 24

No 585

Race / Ethnicity

Alaska Native / American Indian 2

Asian / Pacific Islander 6

Black 126

White 319

Hispanic / Latino 156

Gender
Female 263

Alaska Native / American Indian 2

Asian / Pacific Islander 1
Black 46

White 149

Hispanic / Latino 65

Male 346

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 5

Black 80

White 170

Hispanic / Latino 91

Reason for stop?

Violation of law 327

Alaska Native / American Indian 1

Asian / Pacific Islander 2

Black 71

White 170

3  of  9



Hispanic / Latino 83

Preexisting knowledge 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Moving traffic violation 255

Alaska Native / American Indian 1

Asian / Pacific Islander 4

Black 46

White 137

Hispanic / Latino 67

Vehicle traffic violation 27

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 9

White 12

Hispanic / Latino 6

Was a search conducted?

Yes 2

Alaska Native / American Indian 0
Asian / Pacific Islander 0
Black 1
White 0
Hispanic / Latino 1

No 607

Alaska Native / American Indian 2
Asian / Pacific Islander 6
Black 125
White 319
Hispanic / Latino 155

Reason for Search?

Consent 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

4  of  9



Hispanic / Latino 0

Contraband 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Probable 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Inventory 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Incident to arrest 2

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 1

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 1

Was Contraband discovered?

Yes 0 Did the finding result in arrest?

(total should equal previous column)
Alaska Native / American Indian 0 Yes 0 No 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0 Yes 0 No 0

Black 0 Yes 0 No 0

White 0 Yes 0 No 0

Hispanic / Latino 0 Yes 0 No 0

No 2

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 1

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 1

5  of  9



Description of contraband

Drugs 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Weapons 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Currency 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Alcohol 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Stolen property 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Other 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Result of the stop

Verbal warning 322

6  of  9



Alaska Native / American Indian 2

Asian / Pacific Islander 3

Black 59

White 184

Hispanic / Latino 74

Written warning 102

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 24

White 52

Hispanic / Latino 26

Citation 185

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 3

Black 43

White 83

Hispanic / Latino 56

Written warning and arrest 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Citation and arrest 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Arrest 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Arrest based on

Violation of Penal Code 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

7  of  9



Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Violation of Traffic Law 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Violation of City Ordinance 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Outstanding Warrant 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Was physical force resulting in bodily injury used during stop?

Yes 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Resulting in Bodily Injury To:

Suspect 0

Officer 0

Both 0

No 609

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

8  of  9



Submitted electronically to the

The Texas Commission on Law Enforcement

Number of complaints of racial profiling
Total 609

Resulted in disciplinary action 0

Did not result in disciplinary action 609

Comparative Analysis
Use TCOLE's auto generated analysis o
Use Department's submitted analysis x

Optional Narrative
N/A

9  of  9



Racial Profiling Report | Full
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Agency Name:  SMITH CO. CONST. PCT. 5
Reporting Date:  01/06/2025
TCOLE Agency Number:  423105

Chief Administrator:  TERRY W. HICKS

Agency Contact Information:
Phone:  (903) 590-4901 
Email:  whicks@smith-county.com

Mailing Address:
2616 South Main
LINDALE, TX  75771

This Agency filed a full report

SMITH CO. CONST. PCT. 5 has adopted a detailed written policy on racial profiling. Our policy:

1)  clearly defines acts constituting racial profiling;

2) strictly prohibits peace officers employed by the SMITH CO. CONST. PCT. 5 from engaging in racial 
profiling;

3) implements a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the SMITH CO. CONST. PCT. 5 if 
the individual believes that a peace officer employed by the SMITH CO. CONST. PCT. 5 has engaged in racial 
profiling with respect to the individual;

4) provides public education relating to the agency's complaint process;

5) requires appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by the SMITH CO. 
CONST. PCT. 5 who, after an investigation, is shown to have engaged in racial profiling in violation of the 
SMITH CO. CONST. PCT. 5 policy;

6) requires collection of information relating to motor vehicle stops in which a warning or citation is issued and 
to arrests made as a result of those stops, including information relating to:

a. the race or ethnicity of the individual detained;
b. whether a search was conducted and, if so, whether the individual detained consented to the search;
c. whether the peace officer knew the race or ethnicity of the individual detained before detaining that 
individual;
d. whether the peace officer used physical force that resulted in bodily injury during the stop;
e. the location of the stop;
f. the reason for the stop.

7) requires the chief administrator of the agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected, employed, 
or appointed, to submit an annual report of the information collected under Subdivision (6) to:

a. the Commission on Law Enforcement; and
b. the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency, if the agency is an agency of a 
county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state.

The SMITH CO. CONST. PCT. 5 has satisfied the statutory data audit requirements as prescribed in Article 2.133(c), 

1  of  9



Code of Criminal Procedure during the reporting period.

Executed by:  WESLEY HICKS
Constable

Date:  01/06/2025

2  of  9



Motor Vehicle Racial Profiling Information

Total stops:  211
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Street address or approximate location of the stop

City street 48

US highway 31

County road 75

State highway 54

Private property or other 3

Was race or ethnicity known prior to stop?

Yes 37

No 174

Race / Ethnicity

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 5

Black 30

White 139

Hispanic / Latino 37

Gender
Female 78

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 1
Black 12

White 56

Hispanic / Latino 9

Male 133

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 4

Black 18

White 83

Hispanic / Latino 28

Reason for stop?

Violation of law 55

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 1

Black 12

White 31

3  of  9



Hispanic / Latino 11

Preexisting knowledge 3

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 1

White 1

Hispanic / Latino 1

Moving traffic violation 129

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 4

Black 14

White 90

Hispanic / Latino 21

Vehicle traffic violation 24

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 3

White 17

Hispanic / Latino 4

Was a search conducted?

Yes 39

Alaska Native / American Indian 0
Asian / Pacific Islander 1
Black 7
White 24
Hispanic / Latino 7

No 172

Alaska Native / American Indian 0
Asian / Pacific Islander 4
Black 23
White 115
Hispanic / Latino 30

Reason for Search?

Consent 27

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 1

Black 3

White 18

4  of  9



Hispanic / Latino 5

Contraband 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Probable 8

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 4

White 3

Hispanic / Latino 1

Inventory 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Incident to arrest 4

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 3

Hispanic / Latino 1

Was Contraband discovered?

Yes 16 Did the finding result in arrest?

(total should equal previous column)
Alaska Native / American Indian 0 Yes 0 No 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0 Yes 0 No 0

Black 6 Yes 1 No 5

White 9 Yes 5 No 4

Hispanic / Latino 1 Yes 0 No 1

No 23

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 1

Black 1

White 15

Hispanic / Latino 6

5  of  9



Description of contraband

Drugs 14

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 5

White 8

Hispanic / Latino 1

Weapons 1

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 1

Hispanic / Latino 0

Currency 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Alcohol 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Stolen property 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Other 2

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 1

White 1

Hispanic / Latino 0

Result of the stop

Verbal warning 14

6  of  9



Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 13

Hispanic / Latino 1

Written warning 114

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 2

Black 15

White 77

Hispanic / Latino 20

Citation 80

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 3

Black 15

White 47

Hispanic / Latino 15

Written warning and arrest 1

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 1

Hispanic / Latino 0

Citation and arrest 2

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 1

Hispanic / Latino 1

Arrest 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Arrest based on

Violation of Penal Code 3

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

7  of  9



Black 0

White 2

Hispanic / Latino 1

Violation of Traffic Law 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Violation of City Ordinance 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Outstanding Warrant 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Was physical force resulting in bodily injury used during stop?

Yes 1

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 1

Hispanic / Latino 0

Resulting in Bodily Injury To:

Suspect 0

Officer 0

Both 0

No 210

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 5

Black 30

White 138

Hispanic / Latino 37

8  of  9



Submitted electronically to the

The Texas Commission on Law Enforcement

Number of complaints of racial profiling
Total 0

Resulted in disciplinary action 0

Did not result in disciplinary action 0

Comparative Analysis
Use TCOLE's auto generated analysis o
Use Department's submitted analysis x

Optional Narrative
N/A

9  of  9



Racial Profiling Analysis Report
SMITH CO. CONST. PCT. 5
01. Total Traffic Stops: 211

02. Location of Stop:
 a. City Street 48 22.75%
 b. US Highway 31 14.69%
 c. County Road 75 35.55%
 d. State Highway 54 25.59%
 e. Private Property or Other 3 1.42%

03. Was Race known prior to Stop:
 a. NO 174 82.46%
 b. YES 37 17.54%

04. Race or Ethnicity:
 a. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
 b. Asian/ Pacific Islander 5 2.37%
 c. Black 30 14.22%
 d. White 139 65.88%
 e. Hispanic/ Latino 37 17.54%

05. Gender:
 a. Female 78 36.97%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 1 0.47%
  iii. Black 12 5.69%
  iv.  White 56 26.54%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 9 4.27%
 b. Male 133 63.03%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 4 1.90%
  iii. Black 18 8.53%
  iv.  White 83 39.34%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 28 13.27%

06. Reason for Stop:
 a. Violation of Law 55 26.07%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 1 1.82%

1/13/2025 1  of  7



Racial Profiling Analysis Report
  iii. Black 12 21.82%
  iv.  White 31 56.36%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 11 20.00%
 b. Pre-Existing Knowledge 3 1.42%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 1 33.33%
  iv.  White 1 33.33%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 1 33.33%

 c. Moving Traffic Violation 129 61.14%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 4 3.10%
  iii. Black 14 10.85%
  iv.  White 90 69.77%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 21 16.28%

 d. Vehicle Traffic Violation 24 11.37%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 3 12.50%
  iv.  White 17 70.83%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 4 16.67%

07. Was a Search Conducted:
 a. NO 172 81.52%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 4 2.33%
  iii. Black 23 13.37%
  iv.  White 115 66.86%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 30 17.44%
 b. YES 39 18.48%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 1 2.56%
  iii. Black 7 17.95%
  iv.  White 24 61.54%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 7 17.95%

08. Reason for Search:
 a. Consent 27 12.80%

1/13/2025 2  of  7



Racial Profiling Analysis Report
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 1 3.70%
  iii. Black 3 11.11%
  iv.  White 18 66.67%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 5 18.52%
 b. Contraband in Plain View 0 0.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0
  iii. Black 0
  iv.  White 0
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0
 c. Probable Cause 8 3.79%
  ii.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  i.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 4 50.00%
  iv.  White 3 37.50%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 1 12.50%
 d. Inventory 0 0.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0
  iii. Black 0
  iv.  White 0
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0
 e. Incident to Arrest 4 1.90%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 0 0.00%
  iv.  White 3 75.00%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 1 25.00%

09. Was Contraband Discovered:
 YES 16 7.58%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
      Finding resulted in arrest - YES 0
      Finding resulted in arrest - NO 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
      Finding resulted in arrest - YES 0
      Finding resulted in arrest - NO 0
  iii. Black 6 37.50%

1/13/2025 3  of  7



Racial Profiling Analysis Report
      Finding resulted in arrest - YES 1
      Finding resulted in arrest - NO 5
  iv.  White 9 56.25%
      Finding resulted in arrest - YES 5
      Finding resulted in arrest - NO 4
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 1 6.25%
      Finding resulted in arrest - YES 0
      Finding resulted in arrest - NO 1
 b. NO 23 10.90%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  i.   Asian/ Pacific Islander 1 4.35%
  iii. Black 1 4.35%
  iv.  White 15 65.22%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 6 26.09%

10. Description of Contraband:
 a. Drugs 14 6.64%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 5 35.71%
  iv.  White 8 57.14%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 1 7.14%
 b. Currency 0 0.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0
  iii. Black 0
  iv.  White 0
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0
 c. Weapons 1 0.47%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 0 0.00%
  iv.  White 1 100.00%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0 0.00%
 d. Alcohol 0 0.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0
  iii. Black 0
  iv.  White 0

1/13/2025 4  of  7



Racial Profiling Analysis Report
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0
 e. Stolen Property 0 0.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0
  iii. Black 0
  iv.  White 0
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0
 f. Other 2 0.95%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  i.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 1 50.00%
  iv.  White 1 50.00%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0 0.00%

11. Result of Stop:
 a. Verbal Warning 14 6.64%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 0 0.00%
  iv.  White 13 92.86%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 1 7.14%
 b. Written Warning 114 54.03%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 2 1.75%
  iii. Black 15 13.16%
  iv.  White 77 67.54%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 20 17.54%
 c. Citation 80 37.91%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 3 3.75%
  iii. Black 15 18.75%
  iv.  White 47 58.75%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 15 18.75%
 d. Written Warning and Arrest 1 0.47%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 0 0.00%
  iv.  White 1 100.00%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0 0.00%

1/13/2025 5  of  7



Racial Profiling Analysis Report
 e. Citation and Arrest 2 0.95%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 0 0.00%
  iv.  White 1 50.00%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 1 50.00%
 f. Arrest 0 0.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0
  iii. Black 0
  iv.  White 0
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0

12. Arrest Based On:
 a. Violation of Penal Code 3 1.42%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 0 0.00%
  iv.  White 2 66.67%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 1 33.33%
 b. Violation of Traffic Law 0 0.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0
  iii. Black 0
  iv.  White 0
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0
 c. Violation of City Ordinance 0 0.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0
  iii. Black 0
  iv.  White 0
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0
 d. Outstanding Warrant 0 0.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0
  iii. Black 0
  iv.  White 0
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0

1/13/2025 6  of  7



Racial Profiling Analysis Report
13. Was Physical Force Used:
 a. NO 210 99.53%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 5 2.38%
  iii. Black 30 14.29%
  iv.  White 138 65.71%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 37 17.62%
 b. YES 1 0.47%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 0 0.00%
  iv.  White 1 100.00%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0 0.00%
 b 1. YES: Physical Force Resulting in Bodily Injury to Suspect 0 0.00%
 b 2. YES: Physical Force Resulting in Bodily Injury to Officer 0 0.00%
 b 3. YES: Physical Force Resulting in Bodily Injury to Both 0 0.00%

14. Total Number of Racial Profiling Complaints Received: 0

REPORT DATE COMPILED  01/06/2025

1/13/2025 7  of  7



Racial Profiling Report | Exempt
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Agency Name:  SMITH CO. DIST. ATTY.'S OFFICE
Reporting Date:  01/02/2025
TCOLE Agency Number:  423140

Chief Administrator:  CLINTON H. BENSON

Agency Contact Information:
Phone:  (903) 590-1737 
Email:  cbenson@smith-county.com

Mailing Address:
100 N. Broadway, Suite 400
Smith County Courthouse
TYLER, TX  75702

FULL EXEMPTION RACIAL PROFILING REPORT

Article 2.132 CCP Law Enforcement Policy on Racial Profiling a.) In this article:

1.)  "Law enforcement agency" means an agency of the state, or of a county, municipality , or other political 
subdivision of the state, that employs peace officers who  make traffic stops in the routine performance of the officers' 
official duties.

I certify it is not the policy of this agency to make traffic stops in the routine performance of the officers' official 
duties.

Executed by:  CLINTON BENSON
Chief Investigator

Date:  01/02/2025

Submitted electronically to the

The Texas Commission on Law Enforcement

1  of  1



11 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

1/14/25 Don Bell

 1/21/25 Information Technology

Agreement with Optimum Business for Fiber Moves

Consider and take necessary action to approve an agreement between Smith County and CSC Holdings, LLC on 
behalf of Cequel Communications, LLC DBA Optimum/Optimum Business,  
formerly known as Suddenlink Communications and authorize the County Judge to sign all related documentation. 

This agreement provides for the move of Suddenlink Fiber in the Annex (200 E. Ferguson) and relocate 
that Fiber to the new Data Center located on the 2nd floor.  This is a one time cost and can only be 
completed by Suddenlink technicians since it is their fiber.  This is a Discretionary Purchasing Exemption 
pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, 262.024(a)(7)(C&D) (Sole Source/Component Parts).

The total cost for the project is $3,832.72.

Don Bell dbell@smith-county.com

Rhonda Laney rlaney@smith-county.com

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT



Optimum Business Terms 08.01.22_ggk Confidential & Proprietary Page 1 of 
 

 

Service Agreement/ 
Order Form 

Date: 1/8/2025 

Customer Information 

Customer Status:  Existing Customer  

Customer Name:  Smith County Fiber Master  
TYLER TX 75702-5962 

Billing Address: 200 E FERGUSON ST 07 
 

Street Address Suite City State Zip Code 
 

Billing Contact:  Haley Martinez  Phone  903-590-4713  Email  hmartinez@smith-county.com  

Order Contact:  Colton Sheffield  Phone 903-590-4788  Email csheffield@smith-county.com 

Optimum Contact:  Michelle Thomason  Phone (903) 245-7430 Email michelle.thomason@alticeusa.com 

Optimum Services 
The above Customer agrees to the ordering of the following Services: 

 
Order Type: Change (Service) 
Service Location Type: LIT 
‘A’ Location: 200 E Ferguson St, Tyler, TX 75702-5956 
Demarc: 2nd Floor Data Center 

 
Account #: 7086458011 
Service Location Type: 
‘Z’ Location: 
Demarc: 
Type II: 

 

   Individual Monthly 
Recurring Charge 

 
Quantity 

 Total Monthly 
Recurring Charge 

 
Non Recurring Charge 

1 Fiber Installation  $0.00 1 $0.00 $3,832.72 
2 Reconfiguration  $0.00 1 $0.00 $0.00 

 

Service Term: 
Total Monthly Recurring Charge: 

Total Installation Charge: 

Co-terminus  For Internal Use Only 
$0.00 

$3,832.72 

Remarks 
 
 

 

Terms and Conditions 
CSC Holdings, LLC on behalf of its wholly owned subsidiaries, Cequel Communications, LLC. (“Optimum” or “Optimum Business”) and Customer acknowledge and agree to be bound 

by the Terms and Conditions attached hereto and/or set forth at https://www.optimum.com/terms-of-service/business Customer will be responsible for the rates listed on the 
Service Agreement form and all applicable local, state and federal taxes, charges and assessments along with any other applicable charges. Customers purchasing Optimum Business 
Hosted Voice Service (on Fiber) are also subject to Business Hosted Additional T&C’s for Fiber and Exhibits attached hereby and made part of this Agreement 
Notice Regarding E911 Services. While your Optimum Phone Service may be supported by a battery backup, it is electrically powered. In the event of a power outage or Optimum 
network failure, 911 services will not be available. You are prohibited from moving the phone modem from the address where it was installed. If you move the phone modem, the 911 
service may not function properly and emergency operators will not be able to identify the caller’s location. 
By signing this Agreement; (i) you represent that you are the Customer or Customer’s authorized agent; (ii) you agree that you have received a copy of and have been given an 
opportunity to review this Commercial Service Order and Agreement, (iii) you agree to the terms and conditions of the Commercial Service Agreement; (iv) you acknowledge that you 
have read and understood the Notice Regarding 911 Services above;. This Agreement shall not be deemed effective until it has been executed by both parties. 

Agreed by: 
Customer 
Authorized Signature:    

Print Name:    

Title:   

Date:   

Email:   

Phone:   

 
Cequel Communications, LLC (Optimum Business) 
Authorized Signature: 

 
Print Name: 

 
Title: 

Date: 

 

 
 
 
 

 

mailto:hmartinez@smith-county.com
mailto:csheffield@smith-county.com
mailto:michelle.thomason@alticeusa.com
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.optimum.com%2Fterms-of-service%2Fbusiness.amended&data=05%7C01%7CGeraldine.Konanez%40AlticeUSA.com%7Cb4cca57cb14b4cf57a9008da65de22eb%7Ccf535dc073fc41eaa17417f37ced7fe7%7C0%7C0%7C637934301982004581%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=WhcNgnxoMyHenGDyQcSXIMfjsPIauccapu%2FWT9H0AxM%3D&reserved=0


Optimum Business Terms 08.01.22_ggk Confidential & Proprietary Page 2 of 
  

General Terms and Conditions of Service (Business) 

Subscriber ("Customer" or "Subscriber") agree to be bound to these General Terms and Conditions of Service ("Terms of Service" or "Agreement") with respect to all 
Optimum services ("Service(s)") provided by CSC Holdings, LLC and its affiliates and subsidiaries including Cequel Communications authorized to provide the services 
set forth herein (collectively, "Optimum"), as well as the additional terms of service applicable to the specific Optimum services and/or features to which customer 
subscribes or have access, as are set forth at www.optimum.net and may be updated from time to time, including the additional terms applicable to Optimum TV, 
Optimum Online, Optimum WiFi, Optimum Voice, support services, mobile apps and Auto Pay (collectively, the "Additional Terms of Service"), which are incorporated 
into these Terms of Service by this reference including Optimum DIA, Optimum Data and other Enterprise Fiber Service and Business Hosted Voice Service. Customer 
further understands and agree that the Customer Privacy Notice, which governs the collection, use and disclosure of Subscriber personal information, is likewise 
incorporated into these Terms of Service by reference. 
. 

GENERAL TERMS OF SERVICE APPLICABLE TO SERVICE(S): 

1. Services. Optimum shall use reasonable efforts to make the Services available by any requested service date. Optimum shall not be liable for any damages 
whatsoever resulting from delays in meeting any service dates due to delays resulting from construction or for reasons beyond its control. Optimum shall provide 
Customer with the Services and Equipment identified on the commercial service order presented to Customer' at time of installation (“Service Order”); provided, 
however, if Optimum determines that Customer's location is not serviceable under Optimum's normal installation guidelines, Optimum may terminate this 
Agreement. Optimum shall have no responsibility for the maintenance or repair of networks, facilities and equipment not furnished by Optimum. 

2. Payment of Charges. Payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 
31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the good under the contract; (2) the date the performance of the services under the contract is completed; 
or (3) the date Smith County receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by County in accordance with 
Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. The charges for one month of Services, including any deposits, activation, set-up, installation, construction and/or 
Equipment charges, are due upon installation of the Services or as otherwise set forth on the Service Order. Thereafter, Customer agrees to pay monthly recurring 
Service charges and Equipment charges (if any) in advance, including all applicable fees (such as restoration or experience fees), taxes, regulatory fees, franchise 
fees, surcharges (including sports and broadcast tv surcharges), or other government assessments no later than the date indicated on Customer’s bill. Charges for 
non-recurring Services or Equipment charges will be reflected on Customer’s subsequent bill at the then current applicable rates. All rates for Services, Equipment 
charges and other fees and surcharges are subject to change in accordance with applicable law. If Customer elects to pay by automatic recurring credit card, debit 
card or automatic clearing house payments, Customer authorizes Optimum to charge such accounts. If Customer elects to send a check as payment, Customer 
authorizes Optimum either to use information from Customer’s check to make a one-time electronic funds transfer from Customer’s bank account or to process the 
payment as a check transaction. Failure to receive a bill does not release Customer from Customer's obligation to pay. Failure to pay the total balance when due 
(including checks returned for insufficient funds) shall constitute a breach of this Agreement and may be grounds for termination of Service, removal of Equipment 
from Customer's premises and/or imposition of a late fee (“Late Fee”) in accordance with applicable law. You can avoid incurring Late Fees by paying your monthly 
bill promptly. Any Late Fee imposed on Customer is intended to be a reasonable advance estimate of costs of managing past due accounts. The Late Fee is not 
interest, a credit service charge or a finance charge. If the Customer has more than one account (Business and/or Residential) served by Optimum, all Optimum- 
provided Services at all locations may be subject to discontinuance of Service in the event any one account remains unpaid. In the event collection activities are 
required, an additional collection charge may be imposed. 

3. Additional Fees. In addition to Customer’s monthly recurring charges and any Late Fee, additional fees may be imposed, including fees for returned checks, Payment 
Assistance Fees for paying by phone, receiving a paper bill, charge card chargeback, early termination, reconnection and service calls. Additional charges may also 
be imposed if collection activities are required to recover past due balances, including attorney fees. A list of applicable fees “Schedule of Fees”) is available at 
www.Optimum.com.pricing-packages. Optimum reserves the right to amend or change the Schedule of Fees from time to time. 

4. Third Party Provider Charges. In connection with Customer’s use of the Services and Equipment, Customer may be able to access, subscribe to, use and/or purchase 
products, services, software or applications that are provided to Customer by third parties (“Third Party Providers”). Customer acknowledges that Customer may 
incur charges in connection with the subscription to, purchase or use of these Third-Party Provider products, services, software or applications. All such charges, 
including any additional fees and applicable taxes, shall be paid by Customer to the Third-Party Provider and are not the responsibility of Optimum. Credits or billing 
adjustments for products, services, software or applications billed by a Third-Party Provider shall be subject to the stated billing practices of that Third Party Provider. 
Termination of a service or subscription offered for a separate charge billed directly by a Third-Party Provider shall be effected in accordance with the Terms of 
Service or similar agreement between the Customer and the Third Party Provider. 

5. Taxes. Customer agrees to pay any local, state or federal taxes imposed or levied on or with respect to the Services, the Equipment or installation or service charges 
incurred with respect to the same. 

6. Term; Early Termination. Your Service Term subscription begins either on or the first day following your installation date and continues for the initial term set forth 
on your Service Order (“Initial Term”). If a Service Order does not specify an Initial Term, You have an automatically renewing monthly Term (“Monthly Subscription”). 

a. Monthly Term. If you have a Monthly Subscription, your subscription begins either on or the first day following your installation date and automatically renews 
thereafter on a monthly basis beginning on the first day of the next billing period assigned to you until cancelled by you. The monthly service charge(s) will be 
billed at the beginning of your assigned billing period and each month thereafter unless and until you cancel your Service(s). PAYMENTS ARE NONREFUNDABLE 
AND THERE ARE NO REFUNDS OR CREDITS FOR PARTIALLY USED SUBSCRIPTION PERIOD(S). You may cancel Service(s) for a period up to the last day of the billing 
period prior to the service period that you wish to cancel, and the cancellation will be effective at the end of the then-current billing period. Any request for 
cancellation after the commencement of a service period will be effective at the end of the then-current service period. Access to the Services will, if possible, 
continue to be provided at the location ordered or, if you move, to your new location if in an Optimum-served area (subject to any installation charges). 

b. Initial Term Subscription. If You have an Initial Term, your subscription begins either on or the first day following your installation date and continues for the 
duration of the applicable Initial Term. Upon the expiration of the Initial Term, Customer’s Term automatically renews thereafter on a monthly basis (each, a 
“Renewal Month”) beginning on the first day of the next billing period assigned to you until cancelled by you. The monthly service charge(s) for each month during 
the Initial Term and any Renewal Months will be billed at the beginning of your assigned billing period and each month thereafter unless and until you cancel 
your Service(s). PAYMENTS ARE NONREFUNDABLE AND THERE ARE NO REFUNDS OR CREDITS FOR PARTIALLY USED SUBSCRIPTION PERIOD(S). 

i. If you cancel, terminate or downgrade the Service(s) before the completion of the Initial Term"), you agree to pay Optimum early cancellation fees in an amount 
that includes: (i) all non-recurring charges reasonably expended by Optimum to establish service to Customer and not remunerated, (ii) any disconnection, 
early cancellation or termination charges reasonably incurred and paid by Optimum to third parties on behalf of Customer, and (iii) all monthly recurring charges 
for Services and Equipment for the remaining balance of the Initial Term. You agree that early cancellation fees or any other fees may automatically be charged 
to your account and your credit or debit card provided to Optimum and you agree to pay such fees. 

ii. Following the Initial Term, Customer may cancel Service(s) for a period up to the last day of the billing period prior to the service period that you wish to cancel, 
and the cancellation will be effective at the end of the then-current billing period. Any request for cancellation after the commencement of a service period 
will be effective at the end of the then-current service period. Access to the Services will, if possible, continue to be provided at the location ordered or, if you 

https://www.optimum.net/
https://www.optimum.com/terms-of-service/privacy/Customer-Privacy/altice-customer-privacy-notice
http://www.optimum.com.pricing-packages/


Optimum Business Terms 08.01.22_ggk Confidential & Proprietary Page 3 of 
  

move, to your new location if in a Optimum-served area (subject to any installation charges). 



Optimum Business Terms 08.01.22_ggk Confidential & Proprietary Page 4 of 
  

7. Right to Make Credit Inquiries. Customer acknowledges and agrees that Optimum may (a) verify Customer’s credit standing, make inquiries and receive information 
about your credit experiences, including your credit report, from credit reporting agencies; (b) enter this information in your file, and disclose this information 
concerning you to appropriate third parties for reasonable business purposes; and (c) furnish information about you, your account(s) and your payment history to 
those credit reporting agencies. 

8. Security Deposit. Optimum may require a deposit or activation fee based on Customer’s credit standing or past payment history with Optimum. A deposit or 
activation fee does not relieve the Customer of the responsibility for the prompt payment of bills on presentation. Any security deposit given by Customer for the 
Equipment or Optimum's Service will be due and payable upon the first monthly billing. Such security deposits will be returned to Customer within sixty (60) days of 
termination of Optimum's Service so long as payment has been made for all amounts due on Customer's account and Customer has returned the Optimum 
Equipment undamaged. Security deposits paid by Customer for Equipment or Services may be used, to the extent permitted by law, to offset any unpaid balance or 
charges after termination of Service. Customer shall remain liable for any outstanding balances after the security deposit has been applied. Further terms and 
conditions of the security deposit may be contained in the deposit receipt given to Customer at the time the security deposit is collected. 

9. Disputed Charges. Customer agrees to pay all undisputed monthly charges and all applicable fees and taxes as itemized on the Optimum monthly bill and notify 
Optimum in writing of disputed items or requests for credit within thirty (30) days of Customer’s receipt of the bill for which correction of an error or credit is sought, 
or longer as provided by applicable law. The date of the dispute shall be the date Optimum receives sufficient documentation to enable Optimum to investigate the 
dispute. The date of the resolution is the date Optimum completes its investigation and notifies the Customer of the disposition of the dispute. 

10. Adjustments or Refunds. Any adjustment or refund, given in each case in Optimum’s sole discretion, will be accomplished by a credit on a subsequent bill for Service, 
unless otherwise required by applicable law. No credit allowance will be made for interruptions of Service that are: (a) due to the negligence of or noncompliance 
with the provisions of the Agreement by Customer or any person authorized by customer to use the Service; (b) due to the negligence of any person other than 
Optimum including, but not limited to, the other common carriers connected to the Optimum's facilities; (c) due to the failure or malfunction of Customer owned 
equipment or third party equipment; (d) during any period in which Optimum is not given full and free access to its facilities and Equipment for the purpose of 
investigating and correcting interruptions; (e) during a period in which Customer continues to use the Service on an impaired basis; (f) less than thirty (30) minutes’ 
duration; (g) during any period when the interruption is due to implementation of a Customer order for a change in Service arrangements; or 

(h) due to circumstances or causes beyond the control of Optimum. Unless otherwise provided by applicable law, in the event any amounts owed by Optimum to 
Customer are not claimed by Customer within one year of the date on which the amount became payable to Customer, Customer shall forfeit all rights to the refund 
and all such amounts shall become the property of Optimum. 

11. Equipment and Software. "Distribution System" shall mean (1) all distribution plant, network facilities and associated electronics and all Equipment installed or 
provided by Optimum or its predecessors which is necessary to distribute Services throughout the premises, but specifically excluding Inside Wiring, and (2) all 
Equipment furnished by Optimum at the premises. Ownership of the Distribution System shall at all times be and remain in Optimum and shall be used exclusively 
by and in connection with Optimum operations. Upon termination of this Agreement and if Optimum is no longer providing Services to the premises, Optimum has 
the option to remove all or any portion of the Distribution System, provided that any damage to the premises caused by removal of the Distribution System will be 
repaired by Optimum to Customer’s reasonable satisfaction. “Equipment” means all equipment, including but not limited to, any cables, wires, amplifiers, cable 
boxes, access cards, remotes, cable cards, battery backup units, modems, routers, gateways, Altice One and Altice One Mini units distributed to and/or installed for 
use in the Customer’s service location but does not include Inside Wiring. “Inside Wiring” shall mean all wiring on the Customer’s side of the demarcation point at 
Customer’s service location, whether installed by Optimum or by Customer. The demarcation point shall mean a point at (or about) twelve (12) inches outside of 
where the cable wire enters the Customer’s service location. Inside Wiring shall be Customer property and not Optimum Equipment, and repair and maintenance 
for such Inside Wiring is the responsibility of Customer unless otherwise agreed by Customer and Optimum. None of the Equipment shall become a fixture nor shall 
distribution, installation, and/or use of Equipment, including but not limited to cable boxes and/or set top boxes be deemed a lease of such Equipment. Unless 
otherwise stated in the Service Order, Customer will acquire no ownership or other interest in the Distribution System, Equipment, network facilities, and software 
by virtue of payments made pursuant to this Agreement or by the attachment of any portion of the Distribution System, Equipment or network facilities to 
Customer's premises. 

a. Misuse of Equipment. Optimum Equipment is intended to service and reside at the specific service location and is not to be removed from the service location 
where it was installed or used off premises without Optimum authorization. Customer agrees that neither Customer nor any other person (except Optimum’s 
authorized personnel) will open, alter, misuse, tamper with, service, or make any alterations to any Equipment. Customer will not remove any markings or labels 
from the Equipment. Customer agrees to safeguard the Equipment from loss or damage of any kind, and (except for any self-installation procedures approved by 
Optimum) will not permit anyone other than a Optimum authorized representative to perform any work on the Equipment. Any misuse, alteration, tampering, 
or removal, or the use of Equipment which permits the receipt of Services without authorization or the receipt of Services to an unauthorized number of outlets, 
or to unauthorized locations constitutes theft of service and is prohibited. 

b. Return of Equipment. If Customer's Service is terminated or cancelled (for whatever reason), unless Optimum expresses otherwise in writing, Customer agrees 
that Customer no longer has the right to keep or use the Equipment and Customer must promptly return the Equipment. The Equipment must be returned to 
Optimum in the same condition as when received, ordinary wear and tear excepted. Absent other instructions, if Customer fails to return the Equipment, 
Customer will pay any expenses Optimum incurs in retrieving the Equipment. Failure of Optimum to remove the Equipment does not mean that Optimum has 
abandoned the Equipment. Optimum may impose a charge for unreturned Equipment to be determined in accordance with Optimum’s then current schedule of 
charges for non-returned Equipment and/or continue to charge Customer a monthly Service fee every month until any remaining Equipment is returned, collected 
by Optimum or fully paid for by Customer. Any charge for unreturned Equipment shall be due immediately. Optimum retains ownership of all Equipment. 

c. Damaged or Lost Equipment. If the Equipment is damaged by Customer, destroyed, lost or stolen while in Customer's possession, Customer is responsible for the 
cost of repair or replacement of the Equipment. 

d. Operation of Equipment. Customer agrees to operate any Equipment in accordance with instructions of Optimum or Optimum's agent. Failure to do so will relieve 
the Optimum Parties of liability for interruption of Service and may make the Customer responsible for damage to Equipment. 

e. Tests and Inspections. Upon reasonable notification to the Customer, and at a reasonable time, Optimum may make such tests and inspections as may be 
necessary to determine that the Customer is complying with the requirements set forth herein. 

f. Software. Customer agrees to comply with the terms and conditions of any software license agreement applicable to the software provided or installed by 
Optimum (“Software”). The Software shall be used solely in connection with the Services and Customer will not modify, disassemble, translate or reverse engineer, 
the Software. All rights title and interest to the Software, including associated intellectual property rights, are and will remain with Optimum and Optimum’s 
licensors. If Customer's Service is terminated, Customer will promptly return or destroy all Software provided by Optimum and any related written materials. 
Optimum will have the right to upgrade, modify and enhance the Equipment and Software from time to time. Customer acknowledges that the Software, and 
any related written materials, may be subject to applicable export control laws and regulations of the USA. Customer agrees not to export or re- export the 
Software, directly or indirectly, to any countries that are subject to USA export restrictions. 

g. Repair. Optimum will repair and/or replace defective Software or Equipment provided such damage was not caused by misuse, neglect or other fault of Customer. 
Optimum assumes no responsibility and shall have no responsibility for the operation, maintenance, condition or repair of any Customer-provided 



Optimum Business Terms 08.01.22_ggk Confidential & Proprietary Page 5 of 
  

equipment and/or software, including, but not limited to, televisions, computer devices, remote controls or other consumer electronics, including any hardware 
or third party software, which may be connected to the Services ("Customer Equipment"), except that Optimum may automatically push required software or 
firmware updates directly to Customer Equipment when necessary for the provision of Optimum Service(s). Customer is responsible for the repair and 
maintenance of Customer Equipment. Optimum is not responsible or liable for any loss or impairment of Optimum’s Service due in whole or in part to a 
malfunction, defect or otherwise caused by Customer Equipment. Optimum makes no warranties, with respect to Equipment or Service provided by Optimum or 
with respect to the Equipment's compatibility with any Customer Equipment. 

12. Prohibitions/Theft of Service. Customer shall not intercept, receive or assist in the interception or receipt of, resell, distribute or duplicate any Services. In no event 
shall Customer use the Services and/or Equipment to engage in any illegal or prohibited activity. 

13. Customer Liability for Users. Customer is responsible for any access, use or misuse of the Services and/or Equipment that may result from access or use by any 
other person who has access to Customer's premises, equipment or account. Customer is responsible for ensuring that all persons who use Customer's subscribed 
to Services ("Users") understand and comply with all terms and conditions applicable to the Services. 

14. Business Hosted Voice on Fiber: Customers purchasing Business Hosted Voice on Fiber are also bound by the Additional Terms for Business Hosted Voice Service on 
Fiber found at www.Optimum.com/terms-and-policies ("Terms of Service") and Exhibits A1 and A2 as set forth below. 

a. SOFTPHONES, OFF-SITE PHONES & WIFI CONNECTIVITY: OPTIMUM ALLOWS THE ABILITY TO ACCESS THE HOSTED VOICE SERVICE THROUGH SOFTPHONES, 
OFF-SITE PHONES AND WIFI CONNECTIVITY. IN NO EVENT SHALL OPTIMUM BE RESPONSIBLE FOR, NOR DOES IT WARRANT THE PERFORMANCE OR 
INTEROPERABILITY OF THE SERVICE IN CONNECTION WITH ANY SOFTPHONES, OFF-SITE PHONES OR WIRELESS CONNECTIVITY. IT IS CUSTOMER’S SOLE 
RESPONSIBILITY TO SUPPORT AND TROUBLESHOOT ANY RELATED CONNECTIVITY ISSUES UNDER THIS SECTION. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES AND 
UNDERSTANDS THE HOSTED VOICE PRODUCT CHARACTERISTICS AS SET FORTH IN THE OFF-SITE REMOTE PHONE AND SOFTPHONE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT A2. PHONES NOT PROVIDED BY OPTIMUM UNDER THIS AGREEMENT ARE NOT PERMITTED NOR SUPPORTED AND USE OF SUCH 
PHONES WILL RESULT IN TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

b. Emergency Calling Services (E911) for Hosted Voice Service: Customer is responsible for complying with all applicable emergency calling service laws. E911 
procedures and restrictions are set forth in Emergency Calling Services Terms and Conditions attached hereto as Exhibit A1. 

 
15. Managed DDoS Protection Service: Managed DDoS (Distributed Denial of Service) Protection Service purchased pursuant to this Agreement and offered in 

conjunction with Altice Business Internet Service (over fiber) only, will monitor, detect and mitigate Altice Business Internet Service inbound traffic against 
DDoS attacks and provide cleansing up to thirty (30) times the contracted bandwidth. Managed DDoS Protection Service is provisioned over Altice Business 
Internet Service/traffic only. 

16. Service Level Agreement: The Service Level Agreement (“SLA”) attached hereto as Exhibit A sets forth Customer’s sole remedy for any claim relating to the Service 
including any failure to meet any guarantee as set forth in the SLA. 

17. Access to Customer Premises. Customer grants Optimum and its employees, agents, contractors, and representatives all necessary rights of access to enter and 
within Customer's premises, including access to space for cables, conduits and equipment, the wiring within Customer's premises and Customer's computer(s) and 
other devices, to install, deliver, connect, inspect, maintain, repair, replace, disconnect, remove or alter any and all facilities, check for signal leakage or install or 
deliver Equipment and Software provided by Optimum. Customer shall cooperate in providing such access upon request of Optimum. If Customer is not the owner 
of the premises, Customer warrants that Customer has obtained the legal authority of the owner to authorize Optimum personnel and/or its agents to enter the 
premises for the purposes described herein. Optimum’s failure to remove its Equipment shall not be deemed an abandonment thereof. Customer shall provide a 
secured space with electrical power, climate control and protection against fire, vandalism, and other casualty for Optimum’s equipment. Customer is responsible 
for ensuring that Customer's equipment is compatible for the Services selected and with the Optimum network. 

18. Violations of this Agreement. It shall be a violation of this Agreement for Customer or any User (1) to engage in any conduct prohibited by this Agreement (or by 
any terms and conditions incorporated herein by reference); or (2) not to engage in conduct required by this Agreement, each case determined in Optimum’s sole 
good faith discretion. In addition, whether or not the conduct set forth below is elsewhere prohibited by this Agreement, it shall be a violation of this Agreement if: 
(a) Customer or any User fails to abide by Optimum’s rules and regulations or to pay the charges billed; (b) Customer or any User fails to provide and maintain 
accurate registration information or the information required in the registration process is or becomes incorrect, absent or incomplete; (c) Customer or any User 
engages in any illegal or prohibited activity in connection with their use of any Service; (d) Customer or any User harasses, threatens or otherwise abuses any 
Optimum employee or agent; (e) Customer or any User refuses to provide Optimum with reasonable access to the service location or refuses to allow Optimum to 
diagnose and/or troubleshoot a service issue when such access or customer interaction is necessary in order to provide the appropriate customer support; or (f) The 
amount of customer and/or technical support required to be provided to Customer or any User is excessive in the sole good faith discretion of Optimum. 

1. Termination. Optimum may terminate this Agreement, disconnect or suspend any or all Services, and remove Equipment at any time, without prior notice, for any 
reason whatsoever or for no reason, including but not limited to if Customer or any User fails to fully comply with the terms of this Agreement and/or any Optimum 
or authorized Third Party Provider terms of service, agreements or policies incorporated herein by reference. If Optimum terminates Service due to a violation of 
this Agreement or Optimum’s policies, Customer may be subject to additional fees and charges, including disconnect and termination fees and Optimum may also 
exercise other rights and remedies available under law or in equity.  

2. Termination for Non-Appropriation by Customer. Customer may terminate Purchase Orders if funds sufficient to pay its obligations under the Contract are not 
appropriated by the governing body on behalf of the local government. In the event of non-appropriation, Vendor will be provided ten (10) calendar days written 
notice of intent to terminate. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Customer issues a Purchase Order and has accepted delivery of the product or services, they are 
obligated to pay for the product or services or they may return the product and discontinue using services under any return provisions that Vendor offers. In the 
event of such termination, the Customer will not be considered to be in default or breach under this Contract, nor shall it be liable for any further payments ordinarily 
due under this Contract, nor shall it be liable for any damages or any other amounts which are caused by or associated with such termination. 

19.  

20. Effect of Termination by Optimum. Customer agrees that in the event of termination by Optimum: (i) Optimum and any Third Party Providers of co-branded services 
offered as part of or through the high speed internet service shall have no liability to Customer or any User; and (ii) unless expressly prohibited by law, Optimum, in 
its sole good faith discretion, may decline or reject a new application for service or block access to or use of any component of the Services by Customer or any 
former User. Customer further agrees that upon termination of any Service, Customer will immediately cease use of the Equipment and any Software, and; Customer 
will pay in full the charges for Customer's use of the Service and the Equipment through the later of: (i) Customer's applicable Service month, or (ii) if applicable, the 
expiration of any promotional term, or, if applicable, (iii) the date when the associated Equipment or Software has been returned to Optimum. Failure of Optimum 
to remove Equipment shall not be deemed an abandonment thereof. Customer shall pay reasonable collection and/or attorney's fees to Optimum in the event that 
Customer shall find it necessary to enforce collection or to preserve and protect its rights under this Agreement. 

21. Content and Services. All content, program services, program packages, number of channels, channel allocations, broadcast channels, interactive services, email, 
data offerings and other services are subject to change in accordance with applicable law. 

22. Disclaimer. Optimum assumes no liability for any program, services, content or information distributed on or through the Services, Equipment or the cable system, 
unless locally provided by Optimum, and Optimum expressly disclaims any responsibility or liability for your use thereof. Further, Optimum shall not be responsible 

https://www.suddenlink.com/terms-policy/www.suddenlink.com/terms-and-policies


Optimum Business Terms 08.01.22_ggk Confidential & Proprietary Page 6 of 
  

for any products, merchandise or prizes promoted or purchased through the use of the Services. 

23. Telephone Communications Regarding Customer Account or Service. Customer agrees that Optimum and its agents may call or text you at any phone number 
(landline or wireless) that you provide to us, using an automated dialing system and/or a prerecorded message, for non-promotional service and/or account- related 
purposes, such as appointment confirmations, service alerts, billing and collection issues or account recovery concerns. Customer agrees to notify us: (1) if any such 
phone number changes; (2) is no longer active; or (3) is ported from a landline to a wireless phone number. Customer can manage your contact preferences by 
logging into your account at http://www.Optimum.com. 

http://www.optimum.com/


Optimum Business Terms 08.01.22_ggk Confidential & Proprietary Page 7 of 
  

24. No Waiver. The failure of Optimum to enforce this Agreement and any of its components, for whatever reason, shall not constitute a waiver of any right of Optimum 
or the ability to assert or enforce such right at any time in the future. 

25. No Assignment. This Agreement and the Services and/or Equipment supplied by Optimum are not assignable or otherwise transferable by Customer, without specific 
written authorization from Optimum. In Optimum's discretion, Optimum may assign, in whole or in part, this Agreement, and Service may be provided by one or 
more legally authorized Optimum affiliates. 

26. No Warranty; Limitation of Liability. Customer expressly agrees that: (a) the Services provided are best efforts services and the Services, Software and Equipment 
are provided by Optimum on an “AS IS” and "AS AVAILABLE" basis without warranties of any kind, either express or implied; (b) Optimum, its officers, shareholders, 
directors, employees, affiliates, vendors, carrier partners, content providers and other persons or entities involved in providing the Services or Equipment 
(collectively, the “Optimum Parties”) are not responsible or liable for any loss or impairment of service due in whole or in part to Customer owned- or provided-
Equipment; and (c) all use of the Services, Software and Equipment, including that provided by Third Party Providers, as well as the purchase, download or use of 
any third party service, product, or application provided by or accessed through the Services or Equipment, are provided at Customer’s sole risk and Customer 
assumes total responsibility for Customer’s or any User’s use of the Services. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Optimum Parties make no warranty: 
(i) that the Services will be uninterrupted or error free or that the Equipment will work as intended; (ii) as to transmission or upstream or downstream speeds of the 
network; (iii) that the Services, Equipment or Software are compatible with any Customer owned- or provided-Equipment; or (iv) as to the security of Customer’s 
communications via Optimum’s facilities or Services, or that third parties will not gain unauthorized access to or monitor Customer’s communications. Customer 
has the sole responsibility to secure Customer’s communications and the Optimum Parties will not be liable for any loss associated with such unauthorized access. 
In addition, neither the Optimum Parties nor any Third-Party Provider of services or products makes any representations or warranties with respect to any product 
or services offered through the Services or Equipment, and Optimum shall not be party to nor responsible for monitoring any transaction between Customer and 
any Third Party Provider of products or services. 

Except for a refund or credit as expressly provided in this Agreement, in no event (including negligence) will the Optimum Parties be held responsible or liable for 
any loss, damage, cost or expense including direct, indirect, incidental, special, treble, punitive, exemplary or consequential losses or damages including, but not 
limited to, loss of profits, earnings, business opportunities, loss of data, personal injury (including death), property damage or legal fees and expenses, sought by 
Customer or anyone else using Customer’s Service account: (x) resulting directly or indirectly out of the use or inability to use the Services (including the inability to 
access emergency 911 or e911 services) and/or use of the Software, Equipment or provided third party services or otherwise arising in connection with the 
installation, maintenance, failure, removal or use of Services, Software and/or Equipment or Customer’s reliance on the Services, Software and/or Equipment, 
including without limitation any mistakes, omissions, interruptions, failure or malfunction, deletion or corruption of files, work stoppage, errors, defects, delays in 
operation, delays in installation, failure to maintain proper standards or operation, failure to exercise reasonable supervision, delays in transmission, breach of 
warranty or failure of performance of the Services, Software and/or Equipment; or (y) resulting directly or indirectly out of, or otherwise arising in connection with, 
any allegation, claim, suit or other proceeding relating to Services, Software and/or Equipment, or the infringement of the copyright, patent, trademark, trade secret, 
confidentiality, privacy, or other intellectual property or contractual rights of any third party. Optimum’s Maximum Liability to Customer arising under this Agreement 
shall be the lesser of $5,000.00 or the amount actually paid by Customer for Services hereunder for the respective regular billing period. 

27. Indemnification. Customer agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Optimum Parties from and against any and all claims and expenses, including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees, arising out of or related in any way to the use of the Service and Equipment by Customer or otherwise arising out of or related in any way to the use 
of Customer’s account or any equipment or facilities in connection therewith, or the use of any other products or services provided by Optimum to Customer. 
Customer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Optimum Parties against claims, losses or suits for injury to or death of any person, or damage to any property 
which arises from the use, placement or presence or removal of Optimum's Equipment, facilities and associated wiring on Customer's premises and further, Customer 
indemnifies and holds harmless the Optimum Parties against claims for libel, slander, or the infringement of copyright arising directly or indirectly from the material 
transmitted over the facilities of Optimum or the use thereof by Customer; against claims for infringement of patents arising from combining with or using in 
connection with, facilities furnished by Optimum, and apparatus, Equipment, and systems provided by Customer; and against all other claims arising out of any act 
or omission of Customer in connection with the Services or facilities provided by Optimum. 

27. Regulatory Authority. This Agreement and the obligations of the parties shall be subject to modification to comply with all applicable laws, regulations, court rulings, 
and administrative orders, as amended. 

28. TEXAS ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION. All claims or disputes arising out of or relating to this contract, shall first be attempted to be resolved internally, upon 
agreement by the parties. In the even the parties are unable to resolve the dispute through informal negotiations, and prior to commencement of any court 
proceedings the Parties shall submit this matter to non-binding mediation. The parties shall mutually agree to a mediator, and the mediation shall be conducted in 
Smith County, Texas. Any negotiations pursuant to this Section are confidential and shall be treated as compromise and settlement negotiations for purposes of the 
applicable rules of evidence. Each party shall pay its own legal and other costs relating to the mediation regardless of the outcome of the mediation. The foregoing 
shall not apply to claims for equitable relief. 

28.29.  

29. BINDING ARBITRATION. Please read this section carefully. It affects Customers rights 

a. Agreement to Arbitrate Disputes. Any and all disputes arising between The Customer and Optimum, or its respective predecessors in interest, successors, assigns, 
and past, present, and future parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, directors, employees, and agents, shall be resolved by binding arbitration on an individual 
basis in accordance with this arbitration provision. This agreement to arbitrate is intended to be broadly interpreted. It includes, but is not limited to: 

• Claims arising out of or relating to any aspect of the relationship between us, whether based in contract, tort, statute, fraud, misrepresentation 
or any other legal theory. 

• Claims that arose before this or any prior Agreement; and 
• Claims that may arise after the termination of this Agreement. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, either Customer or Optimum may bring claims in small claims court in Customer’s jurisdiction, if that court has jurisdiction over the 
parties and the action and the claim complies with the prohibitions on class, representative, and private attorney general proceedings and non-individualized relief 
discussed below. If the law of Your jurisdiction allows small claims actions to be removed or appealed for a trial de novo in a court of general jurisdiction, that appeal 
instead shall be resolved in an individual arbitration under this arbitration provision. The Customer may also bring issues to the attention of federal, state, and local 
executive or administrative agencies. 

Resolving Customer dispute with Optimum through arbitration means The Customer will have a fair hearing before a neutral arbitrator instead of in a court before 
a judge or jury. THE CUSTOMER AGREES THAT BY ENTERING INTO THIS AGREEMENT, THE CUSTOMER AND OPTIMUM EACH WAIVE THE RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY 
JURY AND THE RIGHT TO PARTICIPATE IN A CLASS, REPRESENTATIVE, OR PRIVATE ATTORNEY GENERAL ACTION. 

 
b. Opting Out of Arbitration. IF THE CUSTOMER HAS BEEN AN EXISTING SUBSCRIBER FOR AT LEAST 30 DAYS BEFORE THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS AGREEMENT 
AND HAVE PREVIOUSLY ENTERED INTO AN ARBITRATION AGREEMENT WITH OPTIMUM OR A PREDECESSOR COMPANY, THIS OPT OUT PROVISION DOES NOT 
APPLY TO THE CUSTOMER. 

IF THE CUSTOMER BECAME A SUBSCRIBER WITHIN THE 30 DAYS IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS AGREEMENT, AND DO NOT WISH TO BE 



Optimum Business Terms 08.01.22_ggk Confidential & Proprietary Page 8 of 
  

BOUND BY THIS ARBITRATION PROVISION, THE CUSTOMER MUST NOTIFY OPTIMUM IN WRITING WITHIN 30 DAYS OF THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

IF THE CUSTOMER BECAME A SUBSCRIBER AFTER THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS AGREEMENT, AND DO NOT WISH TO BE BOUND BY THIS ARBITRATION 
AGREEMENT, THE CUSTOMER MUST NOTIFY OPTIMUM IN WRITING WITHIN 30 DAYS OF THE OPENING OF CUSTOMER’S OPTIMUM ACCOUNT. IN ALL INSTANCES, 
NOTICE SHALL BE PROVIDED BY EMAILING US AT NOARBITRATION@ALTICEUSA.COM OR BY MAIL TO: OPTIMUM SHARED SERVICES, 1111 STEWART AVENUE, 
BETHPAGE, NY 11714, ATTN: ARBITRATION. 



Optimum Business Terms 08.01.22_ggk Confidential & Proprietary Page 9 of 
  

TO BE VALID, AN OPT-OUT NOTICE MUST: (1) INCLUDE THE CUSTOMERR NAME, ADDRESS, OPTIMUM ACCOUNT NUMBER, PHYSICAL SIGNATURE IF SENT BY 
MAIL OR ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE IF SENT VIA EMAIL, AS WELL AS A CLEAR STATEMENT THAT ARE REJECTING THE ARBITRATION PROVISION IN THIS AGREEMENT; 
AND (2) BE RECEIVED BY OPTIMUM WITHIN THE APPLICABLE 30-DAY TIME PERIOD ABOVE. 

YOUR DECISION TO OPT OUT OF THIS ARBITRATION PROVISION WILL HAVE NO ADVERSE EFFECT ON YOUR RELATIONSHIP WITH OPTIMUM OR THE DELIVERY OF 
OPTIMUM SERVICES TO THE CUSTOMER. OPTING OUT OF THIS ARBITRATION PROVISION HAS NO EFFECT ON ANY OTHER PRIOR OR FUTURE ARBITRATION 
AGREEMENTS THAT THE CUSTOMER MAY HAVE WITH OPTIMUM. 

c. Pre-Arbitration Process.  (i.) Notice Of Dispute. A party who intends to commence arbitration must first send the other party a written Notice of Dispute and 
engage in a good-faith negotiation of the dispute in an effort to resolve it without the need for arbitration. To be valid, Your Notice of Dispute must include: (1) The 
Customer name; (2) the account number and service address; (3) an email address and telephone number at which The Customer may be reached during business 
hours; (4) a description of the nature and basis of your claims or dispute (including where applicable specific dates); (5) an explanation of the specific relief sought; 
(6) Your physical or electronic signature; and (7) if The Customer has retained an attorney, Your signed statement authorizing Optimum to disclose your confidential 
account records to Your attorney if necessary in resolving Your claim. For Your convenience, The Customer may download a Notice of Dispute form from our website 
at www.Optimum.net/NoticeOfDispute. Once the Customer has written the letter or filled out the Notice, send it to us by certified mail at Optimum Shared Services, 
1111 Stewart Avenue, Bethpage, NY 11714, Attn: Customer Disputes. Optimum will send any Notice of Dispute to The Customer at the billing address on file with 
the account. (ii.) 60 Day Wait Period. Whoever sends the Notice of Dispute must give the other party 60 days after receipt to investigate the claim. During that 
period, either party may request an individualized discussion (by phone call or videoconference) regarding settlement, which shall take place at a mutually agreeable 
time (which can be after the 60-day period). The Customer and an Optimum legal or business representative (or outside counsel) must personally participate, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing. Your lawyers (if any) also can participate. If Optimum has not been able to resolve your dispute to your satisfaction within the later of 
60 days from when we received your Notice of Dispute or the date of the individualized discussion regarding settlement, the Customer may start arbitration 
proceedings. The Notice of Dispute and discussion requirements are essential in order to give the parties a meaningful chance to resolve disputes informally. If any 
aspect of these requirements has not been met, the parties agree that a court can enjoin the filing or prosecution of an arbitration, and, unless prohibited by law, 
the arbitration administrator shall neither accept nor administer the arbitration nor assess fees in connection with such an arbitration. The submission of a Notice 
of Dispute will toll the statute of limitations for the claim until the later of 60 days from when we received your Notice of Dispute or the date of the individualized 
discussion regarding settlement. 

d. Commencing an Arbitration. To commence an arbitration, The Customer must submit a written Demand for Arbitration to the American Arbitration Association 
("AAA"), Case Filing Services, 1101 Laurel Oak Road, Suite 100, Voorhees, NJ 08043, with a copy to Optimum. A Demand for Arbitration form can be found on the 
AAA website at https://www.adr.org/rulesformsfees. 

e. Arbitration Process. The arbitration will be administered by the AAA under the AAA's Consumer Arbitration Rules, as modified by this arbitration provision. The 
Customer may obtain copies of those rules from the AAA at www.adr.org. If the AAA will not enforce this arbitration provision as written, it cannot serve as the 
arbitration organization to resolve Your dispute. If this situation arises, or if the AAA for any reason cannot serve as the arbitration organization, the parties shall 
agree on a substitute arbitration organization or ad hoc arbitration, which will enforce this arbitration provision as to the dispute. If the parties are unable to agree, 
the parties shall mutually petition a court of appropriate jurisdiction to appoint an arbitration organization or ad hoc arbitrator that will administer arbitration under 
this arbitration provision as written. If there is a conflict between this arbitration provision and the AAA rules, this arbitration provision shall govern. 

A single arbitrator will resolve the dispute between The Customer and Optimum. Participation in arbitration may result in limited discovery. The arbitrator will honor 
claims of privilege recognized by law and will take reasonable steps to protect confidential or proprietary information, including subscriber personally identifiable 
information. 

All issues are for the arbitrator to decide, except issues relating to arbitrability, the scope or enforceability of this arbitration provision, the interpretation of its 
prohibitions of class, representative, and private attorney general proceedings and non-individualized relief, and compliance with the requirements of Sections 
26.c and 26.g shall be for a court of competent jurisdiction to decide. The Arbitrator is limited and bound by terms of this arbitration provision. Although the 
arbitrator shall be bound by rulings in prior arbitrations involving the same customer to the extent required by applicable law, an arbitrator's ruling will not be 
binding in other proceedings involving different customers. The arbitrator will make any award in writing but need not provide a statement of reasons unless 
requested by a party. An award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction over the parties for purposes of enforcement. 

Unless the parties agree otherwise, any arbitration hearing will take place in the county (or parish) of Customer’s service address. If the amount in dispute is less 
than $50,000, Optimum agrees that The Customer may choose whether the arbitration is conducted solely on the basis of documents submitted to the arbitrator, 
by a telephonic or videoconference hearing, or by an in-person hearing as established by AAA rules. 

If the amount in dispute exceeds $75,000 or the claim seeks any form of injunctive relief, either party may appeal the award to a three-arbitrator panel administered 
by AAA under its Optional Appellate Arbitration Rules (including its rules governing allocation of fees and costs) by a written notice of appeal within thirty (30) days 
from the date of entry of the written arbitration award. The award shall be stayed during any such appeal. The members of the three-arbitrator panel will be 
selected according to AAA rules. The three-arbitrator panel will issue its decision within one hundred and twenty (120) days of the date of the appealing party's 
notice of appeal. The decision of the three-arbitrator panel shall be final and binding, subject to any right of judicial review that exists under the FAA. 

f. Arbitration Fees. Except as otherwise provided in this arbitration provision, if Optimum initiates an arbitration, Optimum will pay all arbitration filing, 
administrative, and arbitrator fees. 

If The Customer initiate an arbitration, The Customer will be responsible for paying a portion of the arbitration fees as follows: If Customer is seeking claims of 
$1,000 or less, Customer’s share of the fees will be capped at $100, and If Customer is seeking claims of between $1,001-$10,000, Customer’s share of such fees 
will be capped at $200. If Customer is seeking claims of more than $10,000, the filing, administrative and arbitrator fees will be allocated in accordance with the 
AAA rules. If Customer cannot pay Your share of these fees, Customer may request a fee waiver from the AAA. In addition, Optimum will consider reimbursing Your 
share of these fees if The Customer indicates they cannot afford them and, if appropriate, will pay directly all such fees upon Your written request prior to the 
commencement of the arbitration. The Customer is responsible for all additional costs and expenses that The Customer incurs in the arbitration, including, but not 
limited to, attorneys' or expert witness fees and expenses, unless the arbitrator determines that applicable law requires Optimum to pay those costs and expenses. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the arbitrator concludes that Your claim is frivolous or has been brought for an improper purpose (as measured by the standards 
of Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 11(b)), then the AAA rules shall govern the allocation of arbitration fees, and The Customer agrees to reimburse Optimum for any 
amounts Optimum may have paid on Your behalf. 

g. Mass Arbitration Procedures. If 25 or more claimants submit Notices of Dispute or file arbitrations raising similar claims and are represented by the same or 
coordinated counsel, all the cases must be resolved in staged bellwether proceedings. The Customer agrees to this process even though it may delay the resolution 
of your claim. In the first stage, each side shall each select up to 15 cases (30 cases total) to be filed in arbitration and resolved individually by different arbitrators. 
In the meantime, no other cases may be filed in arbitration, and the AAA shall not accept, administer, or demand payment of fees for arbitrations 



Optimum Business Terms 08.01.22_ggk Confidential & Proprietary Page 10 of 
  

commenced in violation of this Mass Arbitration Procedures section. If the parties cannot agree how to resolve the remaining cases after the conclusion of the first 
stage of bellwether proceedings, the process will be repeated until all claims are resolved. 

If this Mass Arbitration Procedures section applies to a Notice of Dispute, any statute of limitations applicable to the claims set forth in that Notice of Dispute will 
be tolled from the time the first cases are selected for bellwether proceedings until that Notice of Dispute is selected for a bellwether proceeding, withdrawn, or 
otherwise resolved. A court will have the authority to enforce this Mass Arbitration Procedures section, including by enjoining the mass filing or prosecution of 
arbitrations or the assessment or collection of AAA fees. 

h. Governing Law. Because the Service(s) provided to The Customer involves interstate commerce, the Federal Arbitration Act ("FAA"), not state arbitration law, 
shall govern the arbitrability of all disputes under this arbitration provision. Any state statutes pertaining to arbitration shall not be applicable. 

i. Waiver of Class and Representative Actions. YOU AGREE TO ARBITRATE YOUR DISPUTE AND TO DO SO ON AN INDIVIDUAL 

If any of the prohibitions in the preceding paragraph is held to be unenforceable as to a particular claim, or request for relief (such as a request for public injunctive 
relief) then The Customer and Optimum agree that such claim or request for relief (and only that claim or request) shall be decided by a court after all other claims 
and requests for relief are arbitrated. In that instance, or any instance when a claim between The Customer and Optimum proceeds to court rather than through 
arbitration, The Customer and Optimum each waive the right to any trial by jury through this Agreement. 

j. Amendments to this Arbitration Provision. Notwithstanding any provision in the Agreement to the contrary, The Customer and Optimum agree that if Optimum 
makes any amendment to this arbitration provision (other than an amendment to any notice address or website link provided herein) in the future, that amendment 
shall apply to all disputes or claims that have arisen or may arise between The Customer and Optimum, including disputes or claims that arose prior to the effective 
date of the amendment. We will notify the Customer of amendments to this arbitration provision in the manner described in Section 31. If the Customer does not 
agree to the revisions, the Customer must cease use of all Service(s) within 30 days and notify Optimum that The Customer are canceling this Agreement. 

k. Severability and Survival. If any other portion of this arbitration provision is determined to be unenforceable, then the remainder of this arbitration provision shall 
be given full force and effect. The terms of the arbitration provision shall survive termination, amendment or expiration of this Agreement. 

30. Governing Law. Subject to Section 29.h above, tThis Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state of TexasNew York. 

 
31. No Relationship. Nothing in this Agreement will create any joint venture, joint employer, franchisee-franchisor, employer-employee or principal-agent relationship 

between Optimum and any content, backbone, network, circuit and other technology or communications providers, software and other licensors, hardware and 
equipment suppliers or other third party providers of elements of the High Speed Internet Service, nor impose upon any such companies any obligations for any 
losses, debts or other obligations incurred by the other. 

32. Survival. All representations, warranties, indemnifications, dispute resolution provisions and limitations of liability contained in this Agreement shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement, as well as any other obligations of the parties hereunder which, by their terms, would be expected to survive such termination or 
which relate to the period prior to termination (including legal conditions, payment, and Optimum rights and the rights of others). 

33. Force Majeure. Optimum Parties shall not be liable for any delay or failure of performance or Equipment due to causes beyond its control, including but not limited 
to: acts of God, fire, flood, explosion or other catastrophes; any law, order, regulation, direction, action or request of the United States government or of any other 
government including state and local governments having or claiming jurisdiction over Optimum, or of any department, agency, commission, bureau, corporation 
or other instrumentality of any one or more of these federal, state, or local governments or of any military authority; preemption of existing service in compliance 
with national emergencies, acts of terrorism, insurrections, riots, wars, unavailability of rights-of-way, material shortages, strikes, lockouts, or work stoppages. 

34. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including the applicable Additional Terms of Service, Privacy Policy and Acceptable Use Policy (“AUP”), the Service Order and 
the Schedule of Fees constitute the entire agreement between Optimum and Customer with respect to the Services. No undertaking, representation or warranty 
made by an agent or representative of Optimum in connection with the sale, installation, maintenance or removal of Optimum's Services or Equipment shall be 
binding on Optimum except as expressly included herein. 

35. Amendment; Notice. Optimum may, in its sole discretion, change, modify, add or remove portions of this Agreement at any time. Optimum may notify Customer of 
any such changes to this Agreement, or any other required or desired notice hereunder, by posting notice of such changes on Optimum’s website 
(www.Optimum.com), or by sending notice via email or postal mail to Customer’s billing address, and/or by contacting the telephone number(s) on Customer's 
account (including mobile phones) by means such as but not limited to browser bulletins, walled garden (browser interruption), voice, SMS, MMS, and text messages, 
including by the use of by automatic telephone dialing systems. Customer agrees that any one of the foregoing will constitute sufficient notice. Because Optimum 
may from time to time notify Customer about important information regarding the Services, the Privacy Policy and this Agreement by such methods, Customer 
agrees to regularly check postal mail, e-mail and all postings on the Optimum web site (www.Optimum.com) and Customer bears the risk of failing to do so. The 
Customer's continued use of the applicable Service(s) following notice of such change, modification or amendment shall be deemed to be the Customer's acceptance 
of any such revision. If Customer does not agree to any revision of this Agreement, Customer must immediately cease use of all Service(s) and notify Optimum that 
Customer is cancelling this Agreement in accordance with the then-current policy. 

http://www.optimum.com/
http://www.optimum.com/


Optimum Business Terms 08.01.22_ggk Confidential & Proprietary Page 11 of 
  

Exhibit A 
Service Level Agreement (Fiber Services Only) Not applicable to COAX 

 
This Service Level Agreement (“SLA”) covers the local transport area to the Optimum demarcation point including Optimum equipment associated with the endpoints 
such as POE devices and routers. The provisions described below shall be Customer’s sole and exclusive remedy in the event of Interruption. 

 
MEAN TIME TO REPAIR 

 
Optimum’s objective is a four (4) hour mean-time-to-repair (“MTTR”) 

 
SERVICE LEVEL GUARANTEE 

 
Interruption/Outage (“Interruption”): Defined as a total loss of Service. 

 
Service Level Guarantee: If Customer detects an Interruption, Customer shall open a trouble ticket with Optimum Network Operation Center by calling 866-232-5455 
(option 4) or via the customer portal at Optimum.com. An Interruption period begins when Customer reports a circuit/service failure, opens a valid trouble ticket and 
releases it for testing and repair. The controlling record for the purpose of determining the duration of the Interruption and calculating credits shall be the date/time 
stamp on the trouble reporting ticket as generated by Optimum’s trouble reporting system. An Interruption period ends when the circuit/service is operative. 

 
a. If Customer reports a circuit/service to be inoperative but declines to release it for testing and repair, it is considered to be impaired, but not interrupted. 
b. If an Altice/ Optimum technician is dispatched for a reported failure and it is determined that such failure is not within Optimum’s control, Customer will 

be subject to a truck roll fee for any subsequent dispatch/truck roll(s) requested. 
c. Customer may request a credit, in writing, and reference the date of the ticket. Requests for credit must be submitted to enterprisecare@alticeusa.com 

within thirty (30) calendar days of the Interruption. 
d. For calculating credit allowances, every month is considered to have thirty (30) days. 
e. A credit allowance is applied on a pro rata basis against the monthly recurring charge for the affected circuit/service and is dependent upon the length of 

the Interruption. 
 

Optimum shall credit Customer’s monthly recurring charges for the circuit/service experiencing the Interruption as follows: 
 

Outage Duration Credit of Monthly Charges 
Less than 30 minutes none 
30 minutes up to but not including 3 hrs 1/10 of a day 

3 hrs up to but not including 6 hrs 1/5 of a day 
6 hrs up to but not including 9 hrs 2/5 of a day 
9 hrs up to but not including 12 hrs 3/5 of a day 
12 hrs up to but not including 15 hrs 4/5 of a day 
15 hrs up to and including 24 hrs 1 day 
Over 24 hours 2 days for each full 24-hour period 

 
Limitations: Total credits in a given month shall not exceed one hundred percent (100%) of the monthly recurring charge for the affected circuit/service in that month. 

 
No credit allowance will be made for: 

 
a. Interruptions caused by the negligence of Customer or third parties outside of Optimum’s control. 
b. Interruptions due to the failure of power, equipment, systems or connections not provided by Optimum under this Agreement. 
c. Interruptions during any period when Customer has released the circuit for maintenance or rearrangement purposes or for the implementation of a 

customer order. 
d. Interruptions which continue because of Customer’s failure to authorize replacement of any element of the Service. 
e. Interruptions due to force majeure events. 
f. No trouble found or where the fault of the trouble is undetermined. 

mailto:enterprisecare@alticeusa.com


12 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

1/14/2025 Christina Haney

1/21/2025 Purchasing

Contract Renewal for 11-20 Land and Vital Records Management System

Consider and take necessary action to approve the (1) one-year renewal option with GOVOS, 
formerly Kofile, for RFP-11-20 Land and Vital Records Management System and authorize the 
County Judge to sign all related documentation. 

We originally awarded this item on 6/30/2020.  The terms of the agreement are for 5 years 
with 3 - 1 year renewals.  This will be the first renewal. No price increase.

$172,041.00 per year

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT



























                
                                                                              
 
 
January 08, 2025    
 
 
Mr. Mark Nicks 
Kofile/GOVOS 
 
 
Re:  Contract Extension, RFP-11-20 Land and Vital Records Management System 
  
 
 
Dear Mr. Nicks, 
 
 
The above contract was awarded to your company on June 30, 2020. It has been determined that 
your company has performed in accordance with the terms and conditions of our Contract.  
Therefore, Smith County desires to exercise its option to renew the Contract effective from June 
30, 2025 through June 30, 2026.  This renewal period shall be governed by the specifications, 
pricing, and the terms and conditions set forth per the above reference Contract.   
 
All of our vendors are very important to us and GOVOS’s performance with Smith County’s 
County Clerk Office has been very satisfactory.  Please sign this notification and return to the 
Purchasing Department.  Your signature will show, for our records, your approval for a one (1) 
year renewal on this contract. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Smith County Purchasing Department 
 
 
I hereby acknowledge acceptance of this Contract renewal, and agree to be bound by all 
requirements, terms, and conditions as set forth in the above referenced Contract. 
 
 
Company:    GOVOS     Signed:       
 
Date:        Print Name:       
 
 
 

COUNTY OF SMITH 
Purchasing 

Jaye Latch, CPPO, CPPB, Director 
200 E. Ferguson, Suite 414 

Tyler, Texas 75702 
903-590-4720 

jstanley
1/8/25

jstanley
Josh Stanley



13 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

1/13/2025 Jennafer Bell

1/21/2025 County Clerk

Comm Court Minutes - December 2024

Accept Commissioners Court minutes for December 2024.

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT



THE FOREGOING COMMISSIONERS COURT MINUTES 
FOR THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2024 A.D. 

ACCEPTED THE 21ST DAY OF JANUARY 2025 A.D. 

___________________________ 
Neal Franklin 
County Judge 

_______________________________ 
Christina Drewry
Commissioner, Precinct 1 

________________________________ 
J Scott Herod
Commissioner, Precinct 3 

_________________________________ 
John Moore
Commissioner, Precinct 2 

_________________________________ 
Ralph Caraway, Sr. 
Commissioner, Precinct 4 



































14 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

01/13/2025 Jennafer Bell

01/21/2025 County Clerk

Comm Court Recordings - December 2024

Receive Commissioners Court Recordings for December 2024. 

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT



15 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

01/14/2025 KAREN NELSON

01/21/2025 ROAD & BRIDGE

Plats

Consider and take necessary action to authorize the County Judge to sign the:a. Final Plat for the Smith Addition, Precinct 1, 
b. Final Plat for the Webb Addition, Precinct 4, 
c. Final Plat for Gavins Ridge, Precinct 3, 
d. Final Plat for the V. Walker Addition, Precinct 4; and 
e. Re-Plat for the Oak Hills Addition, lots 17A, 17B and17C, Precinct 3

 

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT













16 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

01/14/2025 Karen Nelson

01/21/2025 Road & Bridge

Utility Permit

Receive pipe and/or utility line installation request (notice only): 
a. County Road 24, CenterPoint Energy, install gas line, Precinct 3, 
b. County Road2171, 1302, 2173, 2174, 2283, 2217, Frontier Communications, road bore to install aerial and underground fiber optic cable with pedestals and vaults, Precinct 2, 
c. County Road 2173, 2328, 2323, 2195, 2294, 129, 1293, Frontier Communications, road bore to install aerial and underground fiber optic cable with pedestals and vaults, Precinct 2, 
d. County Road 4135, Carroll Water Supply, install 4” of water line, Precinct 4; and 
e. County Road 383, Texas Land Company LLC, install water line, Precinct 3

 

✔

✔

SUBMIT











































17 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT  

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

Item Received By: _________________________   Date: __________   Time: __________    

 

AGENDA ITEM # _____________ 

Submission Date:                                                      Submitted by:  

Court Date:                                                               Department:  

 

 

Description of Previous Court Action Taken: (Including date of actions) 

  

 

Item Requested is:   [   ] For Action/ Consideration     [   ] Discussion/Report  
 

Item: (Brief statement as you wish the item to appear on the agenda)  

 

 

Background: (Details of Request)    

 

 

Financial and Operational Impact 

 

Attachments:  Yes _____    No  ______ 

 

Is a Budget Amendment Necessary?  
 

 

Reviewed By: Reviewer’s Signature and Date Reviewed:  

 

 

 

 

 

County Auditor  

Legal Department  

Purchasing Director  

Chief Technical Officer  

Other Relevant Reviewers(s): 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
Note:  This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments.  Forms should be 

returned to the Office of the County Judge (200 E Ferguson St, Tyler, Texas, 75702) for inclusion on the agenda.  Items may not be 

included if submitted after deadline: Tuesday at 5:00pm a week before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting and 

if you have not proactively vetted your item with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as 

reviewed.  Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on Tuesdays each week. 

The offices of the Smith County Auditor and Treasurer regularly submit the monthly report for the court's review, acceptance and approval.

Accept monthly Auditor/Treasurer report and Executive Summary for December 2024.

N/A

x

NO

1/14/2025
1/21/2025

Kalisha Boyd

Auditor



  \\MiscFileSvr\ComCourt\AGENDA_PACKETS\AGENDA PACKETS 2025\3 
January 21, 2025\17- Auditor Executive Report sig page - AFFIDAVIT Dec 2024.docx 

 

 

AFFIDAVIT 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 114.025, THE COUNTY AUDITOR HEREBY SUBMITS 
THE MONTHLY UNAUDITED FINANCIAL REPORT & EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR THE PERIOD ENDING   
DECEMBER 31, 2024. 

 

Ann W. Wilson, CPA, Smith County Auditor 

 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 114.026, THE COUNTY TREASURER HEREBY 
SUBMITS THE COUNTY TREASURER’S REPORT FOR THE REPORTING PERIOD STATED ABOVE. 

 

Kelli R. White, County Treasurer 

 

 

 

THE COMMISSIONERS COURT CERTIFIES THE MONTHLY AUDITOR/TREASURER REPORT FOR THE PERIOD 
ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024 SUBMITTED ON JANUARY 21, 2025. 

 

SMITH COUNTY JUDGE COMMISSIONER, PRECINCT #1 

 

COMMISSIONER, PRECINCT #2 COMMISSIONER, PRECINCT #3  

  

COMMISSIONER, PRECINCT #4 



18 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

Jennafer Macmillan

Weekly Auditor

Weekly Bill Pay

Consider and take necessary action to approve and/or ratify payment of accounts, 
bills, payroll, transfer of funds, amendments, and health claims.

✔

✔

✔

SUBMIT


	1-21-2025 CC Agenda 
	1- Presentation - Budget Award
	2- Presentation - Linebarger Law Firm
	3- Presentation - Courthouse and Parking Garage Construction 
	4- CO - CC - Resolution of Support for Veterans Memorial Highway
	5- CO - CC - Final Payment and Acceptance of Parking Garage
	6- CO - CC - Andrews Center Position #8 Appt
	7- CO - CC - Establish the Smith County Historical Commission and Appoint Commissioners
	8- CO - CC - Professional Services Consulting - Economic Development
	9- CO - CC - Shelter Partners of America - Animal Shelter needs assessment
	10- CO - CC - Pct. 4, Pct 5, & DA's Office Racial Profiling Report
	11 - CO - IT - Agreement with Optimum Business for Fiber Moves
	12- CO - County Clerk - GOVOS Contract Renewal 
	13- Recurring - County Clerk - CC Minutes 
	14- Recurring - County Clerk - CC Recordings 
	15- Recurring - RB - Plats 
	16- Recurring - RB - Utility Permits
	17- Recurring - Auditor - Executive Summary for December 2024
	18- Recurring - Auditor - Weekly Bill Pay 



